
AGENDA

SELECT COMMITTEE - GRAMMAR SCHOOLS AND SOCIAL 
MOBILITY

Monday, 1st February, 2016, at 3.00 pm Ask for: Denise Fitch/David 
Firth/Serine Annan-
Veitch

Darent Room, Sessions House, County Hall, 
Maidstone

Telephone 03000 
416090/416089/415782

Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the start of the meeting in the meeting room

Membership 

Mrs J Whittle (Chairman), Mr A H T Bowles, Mr L Burgess, Mr E E C Hotson, 
Mr R A Latchford, OBE, Mr R A Marsh, Mrs P A V Stockell, Mr R Truelove and Mr M J Vye

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

Minutes of the meeting held on 16 December 2015 (Pages 3 - 6)
 

3.00pm Katherine Atkinson, Head of Information and Intelligence (KCC) 
(Pages 7 - 34)
 

4.00pm Roger Gough, Cabinet Member for Education and Health Reform 
& Patrick Leeson, Corporate Director for Education and Young 
People's Services (Pages 35 - 40)
 

EXEMPT ITEMS
(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such items 

which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Peter Sass
Head of Democratic Services 
(01622) 694002

Friday, 22 January 2016



This page is intentionally left blank



KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

SELECT COMMITTEE - GRAMMAR SCHOOLS AND SOCIAL 
MOBILITY

MINUTES of a meeting of the Select Committee - Grammar Schools and Social 
Mobility held in Swale 2, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Wednesday, 
16 December 2015.

PRESENT: Mr A H T Bowles, Mr L Burgess, Mr E E C Hotson, Mrs P A V Stockell, 
Mr R Truelove, Mr M J Vye and Mrs J Whittle

IN ATTENDANCE: Mr D Firth (Policy Adviser), Ms D Fitch (Democratic Services 
Manager (Council)), Mr J Reilly (Strategic Business Adviser) and Mrs A Taylor 
(Scrutiny Research Officer)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

1. Election of Chairman 
(Item 1)

(1) Mr Bowles proposed and Mr Truelove seconded that Mrs Whittle be elected 
chairman of the Committee 

(2) RESOLVED that Mrs Whittle be elected Chairman of the Committee. 

2. Social Mobility in Grammar Schools  Topic Review - to follow 
(Item 2)

(1) The Committee considered a report on the terms of reference, scope, potential 
witnesses and timescale for the review. 

(2) Members made a number of points in relation to the scope of the review which 
included the following:

 The need to assess the impact of place/area compared to deprivation, i.e. the 
importance of considering whether disadvantaged groups going to school in 
non-disadvantaged areas did better than disadvantage groups going to school 
in a disadvantaged area.

 Included as part of the above was the impact that the primary school’s 
expectations of a child from a deprived background had on the 
encouragement that they gave that child to take the Kent test. 

 Another factor for consideration was the different types of deprivation, not just 
those who qualified for free school meals, but children could also be 
disadvantaged by living in a rural area. 

 The strong linkage between certain grammar schools and specific primary 
schools was also a factor to be explored.

 The support give to academically high achieving children in care to take the 
Kent Test should also be part of the review. 

 Whether grammar schools worked with primary schools to address negative 
perceptions amongst parents and possibly teachers in deprived areas around 

Page 5



the feasibility of children on free school meals and children in care taking the 
Kent Test.  

  Research should be carried out to attempt to establish how children are 
identified for the Kent Test in deprived areas and the role of the Headteacher 
and/ or the Headteacher in conjunction with the parent.  

 A further factor was the use made of the pupil premium to support pupils with 
level 5 and high level 4 in preparing for the Kent Test.

 Reference was made to the Birmingham Opening Doors Project where a lower 
test pass mark was set for children on free school meals. Evidence should be 
obtained from this project.  

 A copy of the “Poor Grammar” report by the Sutton Trust would be circulated 
to the members of the Committee. 

(3) There was agreement that the review would only focus on children who 
qualified for free school meals and children in care. 

(4) In relation to witnesses the Committee considered the suggestions set out in 
the report and in particular discussed the Headteachers that they would like to 
interview to gain evidence of the various issues that they had identified as potentially 
having an impact.  In particular the Committee wanted to explore why some primary 
schools in areas of deprivation sent a relatively high number of children on Free 
School Meals to grammar school when other schools with similar intakes did not, and 
the role of the parent/school in each scenario.  

(5) RESOLVED that 

a) the terms of reference (copy attached as an appendix to the minutes) be 
approved, and 

b)  the general approach to the review, including the suggested witnesses 
and timetable, as set out in the report, be approved subject to it being 
noted that the review would focus on children who were eligible for free 
school meals and children in care

Page 6



KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

SELECT COMMITTEE - GRAMMAR SCHOOLS AND SOCIAL 
MOBILITY

MINUTES of a meeting of the Select Committee - Grammar Schools and Social 
Mobility held in Swale 2, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Wednesday, 
16 December 2015.

PRESENT: Mr A H T Bowles, Mr L Burgess, Mr E E C Hotson, Mrs P A V Stockell, 
Mr R Truelove, Mr M J Vye and Mrs J Whittle

IN ATTENDANCE: Mr D Firth (Policy Adviser), Ms D Fitch (Democratic Services 
Manager (Council)), Mr J Reilly (Strategic Business Adviser) and Mrs A Taylor 
(Scrutiny Research Officer)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

1. Election of Chairman 
(Item 1)

(1) Mr Bowles proposed and Mr Truelove seconded that Mrs Whittle be elected 
chairman of the Committee 

(2) RESOLVED that Mrs Whittle be elected Chairman of the Committee. 

2. Social Mobility in Grammar Schools  Topic Review - to follow 
(Item 2)

(1) The Committee considered a report on the terms of reference, scope, potential 
witnesses and timescale for the review. 

(2) Members made a number of points in relation to the scope of the review which 
included the following:

 The need to assess the impact of place/area compared to deprivation, i.e. the 
importance of considering whether disadvantaged groups going to school in 
non-disadvantaged areas did better than disadvantage groups going to school 
in a disadvantaged area.

 Included as part of the above was the impact that the primary school’s 
expectations of a child from a deprived background had on the 
encouragement that they gave that child to take the Kent test. 

 Another factor for consideration was the different types of deprivation, not just 
those who qualified for free school meals, but children could also be 
disadvantaged by living in a rural area. 

 The strong linkage between certain grammar schools and specific primary 
schools was also a factor to be explored.

 The support give to academically high achieving children in care to take the 
Kent Test should also be part of the review. 

 Whether grammar schools worked with primary schools to address negative 
perceptions amongst parents and possibly teachers in deprived areas around 

Page 5



the feasibility of children on free school meals and children in care taking the 
Kent Test.  

  Research should be carried out to attempt to establish how children are 
identified for the Kent Test in deprived areas and the role of the Headteacher 
and/ or the Headteacher in conjunction with the parent.  

 A further factor was the use made of the pupil premium to support pupils with 
level 5 and high level 4 in preparing for the Kent Test.

 Reference was made to the Birmingham Opening Doors Project where a lower 
test pass mark was set for children on free school meals. Evidence should be 
obtained from this project.  

 A copy of the “Poor Grammar” report by the Sutton Trust would be circulated 
to the members of the Committee. 

(3) There was agreement that the review would only focus on children who 
qualified for free school meals and children in care. 

(4) In relation to witnesses the Committee considered the suggestions set out in 
the report and in particular discussed the Headteachers that they would like to 
interview to gain evidence of the various issues that they had identified as potentially 
having an impact.  In particular the Committee wanted to explore why some primary 
schools in areas of deprivation sent a relatively high number of children on Free 
School Meals to grammar school when other schools with similar intakes did not, and 
the role of the parent/school in each scenario.  

(5) RESOLVED that 

a) the terms of reference (copy attached as an appendix to the minutes) be 
approved, and 

b)  the general approach to the review, including the suggested witnesses 
and timetable, as set out in the report, be approved subject to it being 
noted that the review would focus on children who were eligible for free 
school meals and children in care

Page 6



Select Committee – Grammar Schools and Social Mobility

1 February 2016

Biography

Katherine Atkinson - Head of Information & Intelligence, Early Help & 
Preventative Services , Education & Young People's Service, KCC 

Katherine Atkinson has been the Head of Information and Intelligence for Education 
and Young People’s Services (EYPS) since November 2014. She has responsibility 
for: EYPS Management Information and Service Development teams; Early Help 
and Preventative Services Improvement teams for open access (children’s centres 
and youth hubs), intensive support, youth justice and inclusion and attendance; and 
the Early Help Triage team, the ‘front-door’ to Early Help services in Kent.

Katherine has previously managed the Management Information team in EYPS and 
prior to that managed the reporting and analysis functions of Management 
Information across both Education and Specialist Children’s Services. She has 
worked as an analyst in both the private and public sector, and for a number of years 
in KCC whilst working in Management Information was actively involved with the 
National Consortium for Examination Results (NCER), working as their Development 
Officer, developing reports for their performance reporting systems, used by every 
local authority in the country.

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



Select Committee - Grammar School and Social Mobility

Hearing 1: Monday 1st February 2016 

Witness Guide for Members 

Below are suggested themes and questions. They have be provided in advance to 
the witnesses to allow them to prepare for the types of issues that Members may be 
interested to explore. All Members are welcome to ask these questions or pose 
additional ones to the witnesses via the Committee Chairman.  

Themes and Questions

Katherine Atkinson, Head of Information and Intelligence (Kent County 
Council)

 Please introduce yourself and provide an outline of the role and responsibilities of 
your post

 How many FSM children take up a place in Grammar school compared with non 
FSM children?

 Have we seen increased numbers of disadvantaged children being put forward for 
and accessing grammar school education in recent years?  

 How do attainment levels differ between FSM children and non FSM children in 
primary school?

 Are children who are eligible for FSM and who have achieved Level 5 in KS2 as 
likely to sit and pass the Kent Test as their peers who are not eligible for FSM?

 Is there variation across Kent’s districts in the percentage of FSM children who 
pass the Kent test and take up a place at a Grammar school?

 Does the location of Grammar schools and the competition for places in the West 
of the county impact on the ability of FSM children to access a Grammar school 
place?

 Do attainment levels differ between FSM children and non FSM children once in 
grammar school?

 At Year 11 and beyond, is there a difference in the destinations of FSM children 
and non FSM children?

 Why do some schools with a high percentage of children on FSM send 
significantly more children to grammar school, compared to others with a similar 
demographic with a relatively low number attending?

 Are there any other issues that you would like to raise to the committee? 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



By: Patrick Leeson, Corporate Director, Education and Young People’s Services 

To: Grammar School Select Committee

Subject: Pupils taking the Kent Test and attending Grammar Schools

Classification: Unrestricted 

1. School census pupil context 

1.1 There are significantly fewer pupils with Free School Meals (FSM) in Grammar schools 
than in non-selective schools. The October 2015 school census reports that 12.5 % of 
children are eligible for FSM in Kent schools, 12.9% in primary and 11.2% in secondary. 
Nationally, 14.9% of secondary school pupils are eligible for FSM1. Overall, 2.8% of the 
pupils in Grammar schools are eligible for FSM, compared to 13.4% in non-selective 
schools. The proportions vary by year group, and in non-selective schools the numbers 
reduce significantly in the sixth form. The numbers of Children in Care (CIC) are low in 
Grammar schools, accounting for just 0.1% (40 children) of the school population. In non-
selective schools the numbers are higher, rising to 0.9%. Conversely, Grammar schools 
have a higher proportion of ethnic minority pupils than non-selective schools, 20.2% 
compared to 13.9%. (January 2015 figures are included as ethnic minority data is 
reported annually).

Grammar Schools Contextual Data 

Year 
Group

Total 
Pupils - 

Oct 
2015

Number 
of FSM % FSM Number 

of CIC % CIC 
Total 

Pupils - 
Jan 2015

Number 
of Ethnic 
Minority 

% Ethnic 
Minority

7 5,066 172 3.4 11 0.2 4,871 1082 22.2
8 4,910 183 3.7 5 0.1 4,789 1031 21.5
9 4,902 129 2.6 8 0.2 4,748 951 20.0
10 4,746 120 2.5 3 0.1 4,708 891 18.9
11 4,685 134 2.9 6 0.1 4,644 818 17.6
12 4,996 108 2.2 5 0.1 5,044 1035 20.5
13 4,519 95 2.1 2 0.0 4,541 935 20.6

All Year 
Groups 33,824 941 2.8 40 0.1 33,345 6743 20.2

1 Jan 2015 school census Page 11



Non Selective Schools Contextual Data

Year 
Group

Total 
Pupils - 

Oct 
2015

Number 
of FSM % FSM Number 

of CIC % CIC 
Total 

Pupils - 
Jan 2015

Number 
of Ethnic 
Minority 

% Ethnic 
Minority

7 11,076 1,617 14.6 85 0.8 10,976 1567 14.3
8 10,940 1,706 15.6 91 0.8 10,691 1456 13.6
9 10,695 1,550 14.5 102 1.0 10,718 1491 13.9
10 10,693 1,589 14.9 112 1.0 11,007 1426 13.0
11 10,897 1,490 13.7 137 1.3 11,161 1435 12.9
12 5,741 453 7.9 51 0.9 5,846 919 15.7
13 4,411 247 5.6 23 0.5 4,323 677 15.7

All Year 
Groups 64,453 8,652 13.4 601 0.9 64,722 8971 13.9

1.2 When looking at the total FSM cohort in secondary schools, 9.8% of the secondary FSM 
cohort attends grammar schools and 90.2% attends non-selective schools.

2. The Kent Test (Pupils entered in September 2014)

2.1 Entry information for the Kent Test shows that 15.6% of pupils entered for the Kent test 
are FSM Ever (those that are either currently eligible or have been eligible within the last 
6 years) and that they account for 8.3% of those passing the test. Those who are 
currently eligible account for 7.0% of entries and 3.0% of passes. DfE information about 
Pupil Premium allocations for 2014-15 showed that nationally, 28.3% of pupils in 
mainstream secondary schools were eligible for the deprivation Pupil Premium. 

District/Area FSM Ever Number Pupils 
Entered

% Pupils 
Entered

Number 
Assessed 

Grammar in 
Kent Test

% Assessed 
Grammar in 
Kent Test

Kent LA Yes 1435 15.6 292 8.3
Kent LA No 7736 84.4 3217 91.7

District/Area FSM Eligible Number Pupils 
Entered

% Pupils 
Entered

Number 
Assessed 

Grammar in 
Kent Test

% Assessed 
Grammar in 
Kent Test

Kent LA Yes 639 7.0 107 3.0
Kent LA No 8532 93.0 3402 97.0

Pupils from ethnic minorities account for 17.9% of Kent Test entries, and for over 20% of the 
passes in the Kent Test, which is higher than the percentage of pupils from ethnic minorities 
in Kent primary schools (17.9%).

District/Area Ethnicity Number Pupils 
Entered

Number Pupils 
Entered

Number 
Assessed  

Grammar in 
Kent Test

% Assessed 
Grammar in 
Kent Test

Kent LA White-British                                                       7482 82.1 2762 79.1
Kent LA Non White-British 1628 17.9 728 20.9Page 12



2.2 A quarter of the FSM Ever pupils that entered the Kent Test also went on to achieve 
Level 5+ at Key Stage Two (KS2). They accounted for 73.6% of the FSM Ever pupil passes 
in the Kent Test.

District/Area
Achieving 

L5+ RWM at 
KS2

Number FSM 
Ever Pupils 

Entered
% Pupils FSM 
Ever Entered

Number of FSM 
Pupils Assessed 

Grammar in 
Kent Test

% FSM Pupils 
Assessed 

Grammar in 
Kent Test

Kent LA Yes 366 25.5 215 73.6
Kent LA No 1047 73.0 73 25.0
Kent LA Unmatched 22 1.5 4 1.4

The proportions are similar when looking at current FSM eligibility. Over 20% of the FSM 
pupils that entered the Kent Test also went on to achieve Level 5+ at Key Stage 2 (KS2). They 
accounted for 72.9% of the FSM Ever pupil passes in the Kent Test.

District/Area
Achieving 

L5+ RWM at 
KS2

Number FSM 
Eligible Pupils 

Entered
% Pupils FSM 

Eligible Entered

Number of FSM 
Eligible Pupils 

Assessed 
Grammar in 
Kent Test

% FSM Eligible 
Pupils Assessed 

Grammar in 
Kent Test

Kent LA Yes 141 22.1 78 72.9
Kent LA No 482 75.4 25 23.4
Kent LA Unmatched 16 2.5 4 3.7

2.3 Twenty-nine (out of 96) CIC entered the Kent Test, and 5 of them passed, which accounts 
for just 0.1% of all passes.

District/Area CIC Number of 
Pupils Entered

% Pupils 
Entered 

Number of 
Pupils Assessed 

Grammar in 
Kent Test

% Pupils 
Assessed 

Grammar in 
Kent Test

Kent LA Yes 29 0.3 5 0.1
Kent LA No 9142 99.7 3504 99.9

Of those 29 CIC who entered, 6 (20.7%) went on the achieve Level 5+ at KS2, accounting for 
40% of those CIC that passed the Kent Test.

District/Area
Achieving 

L5+ RWM at 
KS2

Number CIC  
Pupils Entered

% CIC Pupils  
Entered

Number of CIC 
Pupils Assessed 

Grammar in 
Kent Test

% CIC Pupils 
Assessed 

Grammar in 
Kent Test

Kent LA Yes 6 20.7 2 40.0
Kent LA No 23 79.3 3 60.0

Page 13



2.4 Around a quarter of both FSM Ever and FSM Eligible pupils that passed the Kent Test had 
previously achieved Level 2B+ at Key Stage One (KS1).

District/Area Kent Test 
Result

Number FSM 
Ever Pupils 

Achieving L2B+ 
RWM at KS1

% FSM Pupils 
Achieving L2B+ 

RWM at KS1

Kent LA Grammar 232 27.9
Kent LA High 585 70.4
Kent LA Withdrawn 14 1.7

District/Area Kent Test 
Result

Number FSM 
Eligible Pupils 

Achieving L2B+ 
RWM at KS1

% FSM Pupils 
Achieving L2B+ 

RWM at KS1

Kent LA Grammar 83 23.8
Kent LA High 256 73.4
Kent LA Withdrawn 10 2.9

2.5 Independent schools have the highest pass rate for the Kent Test, and for the last three 
years it has remained at around 70%. However, they account for fewer than 7% of 
entries, and 10% of passes. The pass rate for Kent schools (excluding independent 
schools) has remained around 40%, and for out of county schools (excluding 
independent schools) this figure rises to over 50%. Kent schools (excluding independent 
schools) account for 69% of entries and 66% of passes.

 

Kent schools excluding 
Independent Independent schools Out of county schools excluding 

Independent

Year of 
Entry

Total 
assessed

Number 
assessed 
suitable 

for a 
Kent 

Grammar 
school

% 
assessed 
suitable 

for a 
Kent 

Grammar 
school

Total 
assessed

Number 
assessed 
suitable 

for a 
Kent 

Grammar 
school

% 
assessed 
suitable 

for a 
Kent 

Grammar 
school

Total 
assessed

Number 
assessed 
suitable 

for a 
Kent 

Grammar 
school

% 
assessed 
suitable 

for a 
Kent 

Grammar 
school

2014 8741 3567 40.8% 885 635 71.8% 2485 1304 52.5%

2015 9346 3659 39.2% 886 618 69.8% 2813 1499 53.3%

2016 9473 3886 41.0% 907 637 70.2% 3361 1741 51.8%

Page 14



2.6 For the last three years there has consistently been a difference of over 25 percentage 
points between the districts with the highest and lowest pass rates for the Kent Test. In 
the latest year, the lowest pass rate was in Shepway (27.4%), with the highest in 
Tunbridge Wells (54.4%).

 
Proportion of tested pupils assessed 
suitable for a Kent Grammar school

Area 2014 2015 2016

Ashford 41.8% 41.3% 42.9%

Canterbury 42.0% 43.8% 44.6%

Dartford 35.2% 33.4% 40.6%

Dover 32.6% 34.7% 34.2%

Gravesham 37.1% 39.7% 35.5%

Maidstone 42.7% 38.2% 46.3%

Sevenoaks 54.1% 50.3% 50.5%

Shepway 29.9% 24.9% 27.4%

Swale 39.8% 36.6% 36.3%

Thanet 32.0% 30.8% 32.0%

Tonbridge & Malling 47.6% 44.7% 47.9%

Tunbridge Wells 55.4% 51.6% 54.4%

Page 15



3. Pupil Destinations

3.1 The latest information about pupil destinations from Year 11 in Grammar schools, 
matched to FSM eligibility, shows that 79% of FSM pupils stay-on into Year 12 school 
sixth form, compared to over 91% of non-FSM pupils. Most of the FSM pupils not staying 
in school sixth form chose to attend college, which accounted for an additional 15% of 
the cohort. Conversely, only 6% of the non-FSM pupils in Grammar schools chose to go 
to college.

16 Year Olds as at November 2015

Destination 

FSM 
eligible 
pupils in 
cohort - 

number by 
destination

% of FSM 
eligible 
pupils in 
the 16 

year old 
cohort 

(106) split 
by 

destination

Pupils in 
cohort not 
eligible for 

FSM - 
number by 
destination

% of non 
FSM 

eligible 
pupils in 
the 16 

year old 
cohort 
split by 

destination
Apprenticeship 1 0.94 22 0.53
Employment with non-accredited training 0 0.00 1 0.02
College 16 15.09 250 5.99
Not Available - Illness 0 0.00 1 0.02
Re-sitting School Year 11 0 0.00 5 0.12
School Year 12 - sixth form 84 79.25 3817 91.51
School Year 13 - sixth form 0 0.00 29 0.70
School Year 14 - sixth form 0 0.00 0 0.00
Traineeships 0 0.00 1 0.02
Training 0 0.00 9 0.22
Unemployed 1 0.94 4 0.10
Unknown 4 3.77 32 0.77
Work Based Learning 0 0.00 0 0.00
Employment - Part Time/Temp 0 0.00 0 0.00
Employment without training 0 0.00 0 0.00
Higher Education 0 0.00 0 0.00
Not Available - Parent 0 0.00 0 0.00
Employment with accredited training/part time study 0 0.00 0 0.00
Gap year 0 0.00 0 0.00
Self Employed 0 0.00 0 0.00
Volunteer work 0 0.00 0 0.00
Not Available - Pregnancy 0 0.00 0 0.00
All Pupils 106  4,171  

Page 16



3.2 Pupil destinations information from Year 12 in Grammar schools, matched to FSM 
eligibility, shows that 64% of FSM pupils stay-on into Year 13, compared to over 80% of 
non-FSM pupils. Most of the FSM pupils not staying in school sixth form chose to attend 
college, which accounted for an additional 21% of the cohort. Conversely, only 9% of the 
non-FSM pupils in Grammar schools chose to go to college.

17 Year Olds as at November 2015

Destination 

FSM 
eligible 
pupils in 
cohort - 

number by 
destination

% of FSM 
eligible 
pupils in 
the 17 

year old 
cohort 

(119) split 
by 

destination

Pupils in 
cohort not 
eligible for 

FSM - 
number by 
destination

% of non 
FSM 

eligible 
pupils in 
the 17 

year old 
cohort 
split by 

destination
Apprenticeship 2 1.68 80 1.89
Employment with non-accredited training 0 0.00 5 0.12
College 25 21.01 389 9.20
Not Available - Illness 0 0.00 4 0.09
Re-sitting School Year 11 0 0.00 0 0.00
School Year 12 - sixth form 8 6.72 139 3.29
School Year 13 - sixth form 76 63.87 3,422 80.90
School Year 14 - sixth form 0 0.00 0 0.00
Traineeships 0 0.00 0 0.00
Training 0 0.00 7 0.17
Unemployed 3 2.52 11 0.26
Unknown 5 4.20 145 3.43
Work Based Learning 0 0.00 1 0.02
Employment - Part Time/Temp 0 0.00 2 0.05
Employment without training 0 0.00 10 0.24
Higher Education 0 0.00 13 0.31
Not Available - Parent 0 0.00 2 0.05
Employment with accredited training/part time study 0 0.00 0 0.00
Gap year 0 0.00 0 0.00
Self Employed 0 0.00 0 0.00
Volunteer work 0 0.00 0 0.00
Not Available - Pregnancy 0 0.00 0 0.00
All Pupils 119  4,230  

Page 17



3.3 The latest information about pupil destinations from Year 13 in Grammar schools, 
matched to FSM eligibility, shows that 44% of FSM pupils went on to Higher Education 
(HE), compared to over 60% of non-FSM pupils. Tracking of destinations post Year 13 is 
more difficult than for Years 11 and 12, so there are higher numbers of pupils with an 
unknown destination (16% of FSM pupils and 7% of non-FSM pupils). In terms of other 
destinations, 11% of the FSM pupils chose to attend college compared to 8% of the non-
FSM pupils. Thirteen FSM pupils went into employment without training, accounting for 
10% of the FSM cohort, but there were 293 non-FSM pupils in this destination group 
(7%). Percentages taking up apprenticeships from Grammar school were similar for both 
the FSM and non-FSM groups, at between 3 and 4%. 

18 Year Olds as at November 2015

Destination 

FSM 
eligible 
pupils in 
cohort - 

number by 
destination

% of FSM 
eligible 
pupils in 
the 18 

year old 
cohort 

(127) split 
by 

destination

Pupils in 
cohort not 
eligible for 

FSM - 
number by 
destination

% of non 
FSM 

eligible 
pupils in 
the 18 

year old 
cohort 
split by 

destination
Apprenticeship 4 3.15 158 3.81
Employment with non-accredited training 2 1.57 46 1.11
College 14 11.02 313 7.54
Not Available - Illness 0 0.00 6 0.14
Re-sitting School Year 11 0 0.00 0 0.00
School Year 12 - sixth form 0 0.00 1 0.02
School Year 13 - sixth form 9 7.09 161 3.88
School Year 14 - sixth form 0 0.00 14 0.34
Traineeships 0 0.00 1 0.02
Training 1 0.79 15 0.36
Unemployed 6 4.72 166 4.00
Unknown 20 15.75 278 6.70
Work Based Learning 0 0.00 0 0.00
Employment - Part Time/Temp 1 0.79 32 0.77
Employment without training 13 10.24 293 7.06
Higher Education 56 44.09 2,520 60.71
Not Available - Parent 0 0.00 0 0.00
Employment with accredited training/part time study 0 0.00 6 0.14
Gap year 1 0.79 129 3.11
Self Employed 0 0.00 2 0.05
Volunteer work 0 0.00 9 0.22
Not Available - Pregnancy 0 0.00 1 0.02
All Pupils 127  4,151  

Page 18



4. School Level Data

4.1 Some primary schools have not entered any FSM pupils for the Kent Test. Of those that 
have, the percentage of the FSM cohort entered ranges from 6% up to 100%, with 
subsequent pass rates ranging from 0 to 100%. In the 25 schools where 100% of entered 
FSM pupils passed, their proportion of the FSM cohort entered for the test ranged from 
8% up to 100%, but these were typically cohorts with small numbers of FSM, as the 
average number of FSM pupils entered across these 25 schools was 1 pupil from an 
average FSM cohort size of 4. There were 41 schools that entered 100% of their FSM 
cohort, and these were typically schools with just one FSM pupils in the cohort. 
However, only 10 of these 41 schools had FSM pupils that passed the test.  [See appendix 
1]

4.2 There are 60 schools with 10 or more FSM pupils in their cohorts that entered at least 
one FSM pupil for the Kent Test. In these schools the percentage of FSM pupils entered 
ranged from 6% up to 70%. Pass rates in these schools varied from 0% (33 schools) up to 
100% (two schools that both entered one FSM pupil). Upton Junior School and 
Greenfields Community Primary School both have high numbers of FSM pupils and fairly 
high numbers of those going to grammar school, whilst Drapers Mill Primary Academy 
and Newington Community Primary School had no FSM pupils going to grammar school 
despite their high numbers of FSM pupils. [See appendix 1a]

4.3 There are 55 primary schools in Kent that have consistently narrowed their FSM 
attainment gap over the last three years. However, there appears to be no correlation 
between consistent gap-narrowing and a high proportion of FSM pupils passing the Kent 
Test. [See appendix 1]

4.4 Of these 55 schools that have consistently narrowed their FSM attainment gap over the 
last three years, 16 of them (29%) have also shown an increasing proportion of the FSM 
cohort achieving Level 5+ at KS2 over the last three years. [See appendix 2]

4.5 The FSM attainment gaps in Grammar schools are significantly smaller than in non-
selective schools, though the numbers of pupils with FSM are much lower. The gaps are 
small for most indicators at the end of KS4, apart from average point scores (APS) which 
are slightly bigger. However, given the low numbers of FSM pupils the attainment gap 
information needs to be read carefully as a gap can shift significantly based on the 
performance of just one pupil. Harvey Grammar and Dover Grammar School for Girls 
have the best performance in terms of FSM eligibility attainment gap and Norton 
Knatchbull and Cranbrook have room for improvement. It is also worth noting that in the 
latest KS4 gap data for Grammar schools, there are three schools with no FSM pupils in 
their cohort: Tunbridge Wells Girls' Grammar School, Simon Langton Girls' Grammar 
School and Tonbridge Grammar School.  [See appendix 3]

5. Recommendations

5.1 The Select Committee is asked to note the information included in this report and use it 
to support its work. 

Author of Report: Katherine Atkinson 
Title of Author: Head of Information & Intelligence, Early Help and Preventative Services 
Date of Report: 21 December 2015 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 Kent Test Results by School - FSM Cohort Assessed Grammar

Produced by: Management Information, KCC
10/12/2015

Source: PESE 2014 Kent Test Pupils Matched to School Census and CIC May 2014
$sor1wufs.xlsx

DfE School Name
Closed FSM Gap
Consistently L4+

RWM at KS2 -
2013-2015

FSM Pupils entering Kent Test 2014 FSM Pupils on Roll

Assessed
Grammar

Assessed
High Withdrawn % Assessed

Grammar
Number FSM
Cohort
Entered

Total Year 6
Cohort

Total FSM
Cohort in
Year 6

% Year 6
FSM Cohort
Entered

% Year 6
Entered FSM
Cohort
Assessed
Grammar

2490 Bishops Down Primary School Yes 1 0 0 100.0 1 29 1 100.0 100.0
3025 Chiddingstone Church of England Voluntary Controlled Primary School 1 0 0 100.0 1 29 1 100.0 100.0
3317 Lady Boswell's Church of England Voluntary Aided Primary School 1 0 0 100.0 1 33 1 100.0 100.0
3329 Borden Church of England Primary School 1 0 0 100.0 1 19 1 100.0 100.0
3347 Elham Church of England Primary School 1 0 0 100.0 1 13 1 100.0 100.0
5222 St Joseph's Catholic Primary School (Northfleet) 1 0 0 100.0 1 30 1 100.0 100.0
3146 Bodsham Church of England Primary School 2 1 0 66.7 3 12 3 100.0 66.7
2065 Discovery School Yes 1 1 0 50.0 2 61 2 100.0 50.0
3020 Sedley's Church of England Voluntary Controlled Primary School 1 1 0 50.0 2 13 2 100.0 50.0
3120 Barham Church of England Primary School 1 1 0 50.0 2 29 2 100.0 50.0
2072 Westgate Primary School 0 0 1 0.0 1 30 1 100.0 0.0
2109 Higham Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 30 1 100.0 0.0
2148 Shoreham Village School 0 1 0 0.0 1 14 1 100.0 0.0
2226 Eastling Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 14 1 100.0 0.0
2229 Graveney Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 13 1 100.0 0.0
2231 Lower Halstow Primary School Yes 0 1 0 0.0 1 21 1 100.0 0.0
2265 Hoath Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 9 2 100.0 0.0
2270 Aldington Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 19 1 100.0 0.0
2285 Mersham Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 30 1 100.0 0.0
2322 Preston Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 16 1 100.0 0.0
2438 Joydens Wood Junior School 0 1 0 0.0 1 70 1 100.0 0.0
2458 Istead Rise Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 32 1 100.0 0.0
2629 Holywell Primary School Upchurch 0 1 0 0.0 1 28 1 100.0 0.0
3010 St Pauls' Church of England Voluntary Controlled Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 15 1 100.0 0.0
3034 Lamberhurst St Mary's Church of England Voluntary Controlled Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 20 1 100.0 0.0
3049 St James' Church of England Junior School 0 1 0 0.0 1 68 1 100.0 0.0
3059 St Mark's Church of England Primary School (Eccles) 0 1 0 0.0 1 16 1 100.0 0.0
3088 Wouldham All Saints Church of England Voluntary Controlled Primary School 0 0 1 0.0 1 17 1 100.0 0.0
3109 Hernhill Church of England Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 27 2 100.0 0.0
3130 Wickhambreaux Church of England Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 16 1 100.0 0.0
3136 Brabourne Church of England Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 14 1 100.0 0.0
3153 Seabrook Church of England Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 14 1 100.0 0.0
3175 Sibertswold Church of England Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 30 1 100.0 0.0
3186 St Nicholas At Wade Church of England Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 28 2 100.0 0.0
3314 Penshurst Church of England Voluntary Aided Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 10 1 100.0 0.0
3714 St Peter's Catholic Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 30 1 100.0 0.0
3733 Our Lady's Catholic Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 33 1 100.0 0.0
5203 Roseacre Junior School 0 2 0 0.0 2 104 2 100.0 0.0
5216 Stella Maris Catholic Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 28 1 100.0 0.0
5229 Fleetdown Primary School Yes 0 4 0 0.0 4 61 4 100.0 0.0
3182 Minster Church of England Primary School 0 5 0 0.0 5 57 6 83.3 0.0
2095 Cecil Road Primary School Yes 1 3 0 25.0 4 53 5 80.0 25.0
3111 Newington Church of England Primary School 0 4 0 0.0 4 23 5 80.0 0.0
2656 Meopham Community Academy 1 2 0 33.3 3 64 4 75.0 33.3
2275 Victoria Road Primary School 0 3 0 0.0 3 30 4 75.0 0.0

P
age 21



Appendix 1 Kent Test Results by School - FSM Cohort Assessed Grammar

Produced by: Management Information, KCC
10/12/2015

Source: PESE 2014 Kent Test Pupils Matched to School Census and CIC May 2014
$sor1wufs.xlsx

DfE School Name
Closed FSM Gap
Consistently L4+

RWM at KS2 -
2013-2015

FSM Pupils entering Kent Test 2014 FSM Pupils on Roll

Assessed
Grammar

Assessed
High Withdrawn % Assessed

Grammar
Number FSM
Cohort
Entered

Total Year 6
Cohort

Total FSM
Cohort in
Year 6

% Year 6
FSM Cohort
Entered

% Year 6
Entered FSM
Cohort
Assessed
Grammar

2326 Wingham Primary School 0 3 0 0.0 3 31 4 75.0 0.0
3353 Deal Parochial Church of England Primary School 0 3 0 0.0 3 27 4 75.0 0.0
2254 Canterbury Road Primary School Yes 0 5 0 0.0 5 30 7 71.4 0.0
2296 Mundella Primary School 0 7 0 0.0 7 19 10 70.0 0.0
3029 Goudhurst & Kilndown Church of England Primary School 1 0 1 50.0 2 30 3 66.7 50.0
3069 Leeds and Broomfield Church of England Primary School 1 1 0 50.0 2 8 3 66.7 50.0
3199 Egerton Church of England Primary School 1 1 0 50.0 2 29 3 66.7 50.0
3754 St Augustine's Catholic Primary School (Tunbridge Wells) Yes 1 1 0 50.0 2 46 3 66.7 50.0
2643 Swalecliffe Community Primary School 1 3 0 25.0 4 95 6 66.7 25.0
2041 Holy Family RC Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 21 3 66.7 0.0
2232 Luddenham School 0 4 0 0.0 4 32 6 66.7 0.0
3172 Northbourne Church of England Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 10 3 66.7 0.0
2523 Upton Junior School 3 6 0 33.3 9 125 14 64.3 33.3
3338 Herne Church of England Junior School Yes 1 4 0 20.0 5 85 8 62.5 20.0
2006 St James the Great Academy 0 5 0 0.0 5 21 8 62.5 0.0
3072 St Michael's Church of England Junior School 0 5 0 0.0 5 45 8 62.5 0.0
3140 Kingsnorth Church of England Primary School 1 2 0 33.3 3 60 5 60.0 33.3
3744 St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Primary School 1 2 0 33.3 3 47 5 60.0 33.3
2679 Brent Primary School Yes 0 3 0 0.0 3 59 5 60.0 0.0
2692 Churchill School Yes 0 3 0 0.0 3 60 5 60.0 0.0
5206 Herne Bay Junior School Yes 0 9 1 0.0 10 124 17 58.8 0.0
2625 Godinton Primary School 2 2 0 50.0 4 58 7 57.1 50.0
2003 Oaks Academy 0 4 0 0.0 4 20 7 57.1 0.0
3021 Stone St Mary's Church of England Voluntary Controlled Primary School 2 3 0 40.0 5 50 9 55.6 40.0
2444 Riverview Junior School 1 5 0 16.7 6 119 11 54.5 16.7
2171 Brunswick House Primary School 0 5 1 0.0 6 60 11 54.5 0.0
3178 Birchington Church of England Primary School 2 5 0 28.6 7 60 13 53.8 28.6
2028 Cliftonville Primary School Yes 3 11 0 21.4 14 90 26 53.8 21.4
2282 Great Chart Primary School Yes 1 0 0 100.0 1 59 2 50.0 100.0
3298 West Kingsdown CEP School 1 0 0 100.0 1 29 2 50.0 100.0
3307 Chevening St Botolph's Church of England V A Primary School 1 0 0 100.0 1 29 2 50.0 100.0
3716 St Teresa's Catholic Primary School 1 0 0 100.0 1 31 2 50.0 100.0
5214 St Bartholomew's Catholic Primary School Yes 4 0 0 100.0 4 52 8 50.0 100.0
2033 Pilgrims' Way Primary School and Nursery 1 1 0 50.0 2 25 4 50.0 50.0
2280 Challock Primary School 1 1 0 50.0 2 26 4 50.0 50.0
2530 Tunbury Primary School 1 1 0 50.0 2 89 4 50.0 50.0
3907 Hextable Primary School 1 1 0 50.0 2 60 4 50.0 50.0
2545 Sandgate Primary School 1 2 0 33.3 3 60 6 50.0 33.3
3108 Ospringe Church of England Primary School 1 2 0 33.3 3 29 6 50.0 33.3
2315 White Cliffs Primary College for the Arts Yes 1 3 0 25.0 4 18 8 50.0 25.0
3889 St Gregory's Catholic Primary School - Margate 1 4 0 20.0 5 45 10 50.0 20.0
3133 Kennington Church of England Junior School 1 5 0 16.7 6 83 12 50.0 16.7
2044 Loose Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 90 4 50.0 0.0
2066 Maypole Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 30 4 50.0 0.0
2139 Pembury School 0 1 0 0.0 1 61 2 50.0 0.0

P
age 22



Appendix 1 Kent Test Results by School - FSM Cohort Assessed Grammar

Produced by: Management Information, KCC
10/12/2015

Source: PESE 2014 Kent Test Pupils Matched to School Census and CIC May 2014
$sor1wufs.xlsx

DfE School Name
Closed FSM Gap
Consistently L4+

RWM at KS2 -
2013-2015

FSM Pupils entering Kent Test 2014 FSM Pupils on Roll

Assessed
Grammar

Assessed
High Withdrawn % Assessed

Grammar
Number FSM
Cohort
Entered

Total Year 6
Cohort

Total FSM
Cohort in
Year 6

% Year 6
FSM Cohort
Entered

% Year 6
Entered FSM
Cohort
Assessed
Grammar

2258 Blean Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 67 2 50.0 0.0
2509 Singlewell Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 30 2 50.0 0.0
2595 Grove Park Primary School 0 3 0 0.0 3 60 6 50.0 0.0
2685 Gateway Community Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 29 2 50.0 0.0
3018 Rosherville Church of England Voluntary Controlled Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 20 4 50.0 0.0
3027 Cranbrook Church of England Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 23 4 50.0 0.0
3042 Speldhurst Church of England Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 20 2 50.0 0.0
3137 Brookland Church of England Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 15 2 50.0 0.0
3138 St Mary's Church of England Primary School - Chilham 0 1 0 0.0 1 15 2 50.0 0.0
3150 St Peter's Church of England Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 9 2 50.0 0.0
3173 Kingsdown and Ringwould Church of England Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 32 2 50.0 0.0
3200 Brenzett Church of England Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 14 2 50.0 0.0
3299 John Wesley Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 29 2 50.0 0.0
3312 Hever Church of England Voluntary Aided Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 14 2 50.0 0.0
3328 Bapchild and Tonge Church of England Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 27 2 50.0 0.0
3339 Whitstable and Seasalter Endowed Church of England Junior School 0 3 0 0.0 3 52 6 50.0 0.0
3348 St Eanswythe's Church of England Primary School Yes 0 2 0 0.0 2 30 4 50.0 0.0
3718 St Augustine's Catholic Primary School (Hythe) 0 1 0 0.0 1 28 2 50.0 0.0
3722 St Ethelbert's Catholic Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 30 2 50.0 0.0
3911 Hornbeam Primary School 0 3 0 0.0 3 30 6 50.0 0.0
3918 Newington Community Primary School and Nursery 0 11 1 0.0 12 64 24 50.0 0.0
5204 Sutton-at-Hone Church of England Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 46 2 50.0 0.0
5209 Allington Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 61 2 50.0 0.0
5225 Harcourt Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 14 4 50.0 0.0
3148 Christ Church Church of England Primary School 2 7 1 20.0 10 59 21 47.6 20.0
2272 East Stour Primary School 0 7 0 0.0 7 59 16 43.8 0.0
3917 Garlinge Primary School and Nursery 0 7 0 0.0 7 60 16 43.8 0.0
3181 St Saviour's Church of England Junior School 2 1 0 66.7 3 96 7 42.9 66.7
3128 Sturry Church of England Primary School 1 2 0 33.3 3 46 7 42.9 33.3
5202 Holy Trinity Church of England Voluntary Aided Primary School 1 2 0 33.3 3 62 7 42.9 33.3
2031 Morehall Academy 0 3 0 0.0 3 18 7 42.9 0.0
3163 Downs Church of England Primary School Yes 0 3 0 0.0 3 51 7 42.9 0.0
2011 Salmestone Primary School 1 4 0 20.0 5 59 12 41.7 20.0
5226 Willesborough Junior School Yes 0 7 0 0.0 7 118 17 41.2 0.0
2672 Palm Bay Primary School 2 0 0 100.0 2 44 5 40.0 100.0
2313 St Martin's School (Dover) 1 1 0 50.0 2 25 5 40.0 50.0
3340 St Mary's Church of England Primary School (Ashford) 1 1 0 50.0 2 59 5 40.0 50.0
3720 St Mary's Catholic Primary School (Deal) 1 1 0 50.0 2 20 5 40.0 50.0
3910 Joy Lane Primary School 1 3 0 25.0 4 55 10 40.0 25.0
2192 Staplehurst School 0 2 0 0.0 2 62 5 40.0 0.0
2312 River Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 56 5 40.0 0.0
2552 Sandling Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 60 5 40.0 0.0
2586 Senacre Wood Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 29 5 40.0 0.0
2676 West Hill Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 70 5 40.0 0.0
3904 Castle Hill Community Primary School Yes 0 3 1 0.0 4 27 10 40.0 0.0

P
age 23



Appendix 1 Kent Test Results by School - FSM Cohort Assessed Grammar

Produced by: Management Information, KCC
10/12/2015

Source: PESE 2014 Kent Test Pupils Matched to School Census and CIC May 2014
$sor1wufs.xlsx

DfE School Name
Closed FSM Gap
Consistently L4+

RWM at KS2 -
2013-2015

FSM Pupils entering Kent Test 2014 FSM Pupils on Roll

Assessed
Grammar

Assessed
High Withdrawn % Assessed

Grammar
Number FSM
Cohort
Entered

Total Year 6
Cohort

Total FSM
Cohort in
Year 6

% Year 6
FSM Cohort
Entered

% Year 6
Entered FSM
Cohort
Assessed
Grammar

2132 Hadlow School 0 3 0 0.0 3 30 8 37.5 0.0
2180 South Borough Primary School 0 3 0 0.0 3 30 8 37.5 0.0
2235 Minster in Sheppey Primary School 0 3 0 0.0 3 66 8 37.5 0.0
2259 Chartham Primary School 0 3 0 0.0 3 45 8 37.5 0.0
3294 St Matthew's High Brooms Church of England Voluntary Controlled Primary School 0 3 0 0.0 3 51 8 37.5 0.0
3356 St Mary's Church of England Primary School (Dover) 0 3 0 0.0 3 37 8 37.5 0.0
2658 Westcourt Primary School Yes 1 3 0 25.0 4 30 11 36.4 25.0
3117 Teynham Parochial Church of England Primary School 1 3 0 25.0 4 29 11 36.4 25.0
3349 St Mary's Church of England Primary School (Folkestone) 1 3 0 25.0 4 53 11 36.4 25.0
2228 Davington Primary School 0 4 0 0.0 4 59 11 36.4 0.0
2431 Shears Green Junior School 1 4 0 20.0 5 120 14 35.7 20.0
2017 Drapers Mills Primary Academy Yes 0 10 1 0.0 11 58 31 35.5 0.0
3289 St Peter's Methodist Voluntary Controlled Primary School (Canterbury) 1 0 0 100.0 1 28 3 33.3 100.0
3743 St Simon of England Roman Catholic Primary School 2 0 0 100.0 2 31 6 33.3 100.0
5201 Borough Green Primary School 1 0 0 100.0 1 44 3 33.3 100.0
5224 All Souls' Church of England Primary School Yes 1 0 0 100.0 1 40 3 33.3 100.0
2020 Christ Church Church of England Junior School Yes 1 1 0 50.0 2 64 6 33.3 50.0
2650 Dymchurch Primary School Yes 1 1 0 50.0 2 26 6 33.3 50.0
3050 St John's Church of England Primary School (Tunbridge Wells) 1 1 0 50.0 2 96 6 33.3 50.0
3898 Greenfields Community Primary School 3 3 0 50.0 6 44 18 33.3 50.0
3360 St Peter-in-Thanet Church of England Junior School 1 2 0 33.3 3 96 9 33.3 33.3
2000 St John's Church of England Primary School (Canterbury) 0 3 1 0.0 4 24 12 33.3 0.0
2138 Otford Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 51 3 33.3 0.0
2168 Lenham Primary School Yes 0 1 0 0.0 1 29 3 33.3 0.0
2172 East Borough Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 63 3 33.3 0.0
2193 Sutton Valence Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 29 3 33.3 0.0
2230 Iwade Community Primary School Yes 0 1 0 0.0 1 60 3 33.3 0.0
2286 Hamstreet Primary School Yes 0 1 0 0.0 1 42 3 33.3 0.0
2463 Minterne Community Junior School 0 3 0 0.0 3 103 9 33.3 0.0
2510 Cheriton Primary School 0 5 0 0.0 5 60 15 33.3 0.0
2520 Madginford Park Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 96 3 33.3 0.0
2524 Palmarsh Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 15 3 33.3 0.0
2596 Chilton Primary School 0 3 0 0.0 3 60 9 33.3 0.0
2627 Sandwich Junior School 0 1 0 0.0 1 47 3 33.3 0.0
2645 Lydd Primary School 0 4 0 0.0 4 38 12 33.3 0.0
2667 St Stephen's (Tonbridge) Primary School 0 3 0 0.0 3 27 9 33.3 0.0
2686 Furley Park Primary School Yes 0 1 0 0.0 1 58 3 33.3 0.0
3126 Littlebourne Church of England Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 11 3 33.3 0.0
3149 St Martin's Church of England Primary School Folkestone 0 1 0 0.0 1 28 3 33.3 0.0
3284 Lady Joanna Thornhill Endowed Primary School 0 0 1 0.0 1 60 3 33.3 0.0
3355 Charlton Church of England Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 31 3 33.3 0.0
3708 St John's Catholic Primary School 0 1 1 0.0 2 88 6 33.3 0.0
3913 Rusthall St Paul's CofE VA Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 30 3 33.3 0.0
5213 Holy Trinity Church of England Primary School (Dartford) 0 2 0 0.0 2 56 6 33.3 0.0
3912 Westlands Primary School Yes 1 1 1 33.3 3 60 10 30.0 33.3

P
age 24



Appendix 1 Kent Test Results by School - FSM Cohort Assessed Grammar

Produced by: Management Information, KCC
10/12/2015

Source: PESE 2014 Kent Test Pupils Matched to School Census and CIC May 2014
$sor1wufs.xlsx

DfE School Name
Closed FSM Gap
Consistently L4+

RWM at KS2 -
2013-2015

FSM Pupils entering Kent Test 2014 FSM Pupils on Roll

Assessed
Grammar

Assessed
High Withdrawn % Assessed

Grammar
Number FSM
Cohort
Entered

Total Year 6
Cohort

Total FSM
Cohort in
Year 6

% Year 6
FSM Cohort
Entered

% Year 6
Entered FSM
Cohort
Assessed
Grammar

2010 Newlands Primary School Yes 1 3 1 20.0 5 45 17 29.4 20.0
2021 Kemsley Primary Academy 1 1 0 50.0 2 28 7 28.6 50.0
3106 Eastchurch Church of England Primary School 1 1 0 50.0 2 54 7 28.6 50.0
2654 Canterbury Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 30 7 28.6 0.0
2659 Sandown School 0 2 0 0.0 2 35 7 28.6 0.0
3035 Seal Church of England Voluntary Controlled Primary School Yes 0 2 0 0.0 2 20 7 28.6 0.0
3179 Holy Trinity and St John's Church of England Primary School (Margate) 0 4 0 0.0 4 57 14 28.6 0.0
3296 Langafel Church of England Voluntary Controlled Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 48 7 28.6 0.0
2249 Regis Manor Community Primary School 2 2 0 50.0 4 54 15 26.7 50.0
2005 York Road Junior Academy 1 3 0 25.0 4 94 15 26.7 25.0
3905 Beaver Green Community Primary School 0 4 0 0.0 4 60 15 26.7 0.0
3089 St George's Church of England Voluntary Controlled Primary School Yes 1 0 0 100.0 1 29 4 25.0 100.0
3351 Cartwright and Kelsey Church of England Primary School 1 0 0 100.0 1 25 4 25.0 100.0
2237 Queenborough School and Nursery 0 3 1 0.0 4 48 16 25.0 0.0
2511 Hartley Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 60 4 25.0 0.0
2548 Barming Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 60 4 25.0 0.0
3084 Wateringbury Church of England Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 41 4 25.0 0.0
3740 St Richard's Catholic Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 22 4 25.0 0.0
3915 Manor Community Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 55 8 25.0 0.0
3920 Goat Lees Primary School 0 0 1 0.0 1 13 4 25.0 0.0
5221 Wincheap Foundation Primary School Yes 1 2 0 33.3 3 55 13 23.1 33.3
2014 St Laurence in Thanet Church of England Junior School 0 3 0 0.0 3 63 13 23.1 0.0
2310 Barton Junior School 0 3 0 0.0 3 48 13 23.1 0.0
5220 Halfway Houses Primary School 0 3 0 0.0 3 68 13 23.1 0.0
2191 St Katherine's School 1 1 0 50.0 2 78 9 22.2 50.0
2156 Sussex Road Community Primary School 0 0 2 0.0 2 54 9 22.2 0.0
2176 Park Way Primary School Yes 0 2 0 0.0 2 43 9 22.2 0.0
2525 Painters Ash Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 60 9 22.2 0.0
2569 Briary Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 60 9 22.2 0.0
2648 Aylesham Primary School 0 1 1 0.0 2 30 9 22.2 0.0
2691 St Nicholas C of E Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 47 9 22.2 0.0
3892 St Mary of Charity CE Primary 0 2 0 0.0 2 21 9 22.2 0.0
5218 Greatstone Primary School Yes 0 2 0 0.0 2 48 9 22.2 0.0
5223 Brookfield Junior School Larkfield 0 2 0 0.0 2 59 9 22.2 0.0
2175 North Borough Junior School 1 0 0 100.0 1 61 5 20.0 100.0
2615 High Firs Primary School 1 0 0 100.0 1 30 5 20.0 100.0
5215 Horton Kirby Church of England Primary School 1 0 0 100.0 1 40 5 20.0 100.0
5228 St George's Church of England Primary School (Voluntary Aided) 1 1 0 50.0 2 39 10 20.0 50.0
2307 Warden House Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 51 5 20.0 0.0
3052 St Mark 's Church of England Primary School (Tunbridge Wells) 0 1 0 0.0 1 30 5 20.0 0.0
3122 Bridge and Patrixbourne Church of England Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 55 5 20.0 0.0
3900 Whitehill Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 59 10 20.0 0.0
3914 Oakfield Community Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 69 10 20.0 0.0
3919 Dartford Bridge Community Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 28 5 20.0 0.0
2434 West Minster Primary School 1 4 0 20.0 5 56 27 18.5 20.0

P
age 25



Appendix 1 Kent Test Results by School - FSM Cohort Assessed Grammar

Produced by: Management Information, KCC
10/12/2015

Source: PESE 2014 Kent Test Pupils Matched to School Census and CIC May 2014
$sor1wufs.xlsx

DfE School Name
Closed FSM Gap
Consistently L4+

RWM at KS2 -
2013-2015

FSM Pupils entering Kent Test 2014 FSM Pupils on Roll

Assessed
Grammar

Assessed
High Withdrawn % Assessed

Grammar
Number FSM
Cohort
Entered

Total Year 6
Cohort

Total FSM
Cohort in
Year 6

% Year 6
FSM Cohort
Entered

% Year 6
Entered FSM
Cohort
Assessed
Grammar

2015 Dame Janet Primary Academy 0 3 1 0.0 4 79 22 18.2 0.0
2661 Cage Green Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 52 11 18.2 0.0
5200 Snodland Church of England Voluntary Aided Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 43 11 18.2 0.0
3909 Ashford Oaks Primary School 1 1 1 33.3 3 52 17 17.6 33.3
2298 Hawkinge Primary School 1 0 0 100.0 1 42 6 16.7 100.0
2024 Copperfield Academy 1 1 0 50.0 2 59 12 16.7 50.0
2608 St Stephen's Junior School 1 1 0 50.0 2 98 12 16.7 50.0
6908 Folkestone Academy 1 1 0 50.0 2 60 12 16.7 50.0
2032 Richmond Academy 0 2 1 0.0 3 46 18 16.7 0.0
2269 Whitstable Junior School 0 1 0 0.0 1 47 6 16.7 0.0
3055 Churchill Church of England Voluntary Controlled Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 39 6 16.7 0.0
3713 St Edward's Roman Catholic Primary School Yes 0 1 0 0.0 1 27 6 16.7 0.0
3893 Phoenix Community Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 29 6 16.7 0.0
2636 Edenbridge Primary School Yes 0 2 0 0.0 2 48 13 15.4 0.0
3144 Tenterden Church of England Junior School 1 0 0 100.0 1 58 7 14.3 100.0
2007 Molehill Copse Primary School 0 3 0 0.0 3 40 21 14.3 0.0
2047 Knockhall Community Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 48 7 14.3 0.0
2116 Lawn Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 19 7 14.3 0.0
3086 West Malling Church of England Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 29 7 14.3 0.0
2001 Horizon Primary Academy 0 2 0 0.0 2 24 16 12.5 0.0
2674 Kings Farm Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 38 8 12.5 0.0
2684 Wentworth Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 73 8 12.5 0.0
3124 Reculver Church of England Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 59 8 12.5 0.0
2018 Temple Grove Academy (Formerly Sherwood Park) Yes 0 0 1 0.0 1 42 9 11.1 0.0
2027 Archbishop Courtenay CoE Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 25 9 11.1 0.0
2471 Whitfield Aspen School 0 1 0 0.0 1 55 9 11.1 0.0
2653 West Borough Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 58 9 11.1 0.0
2264 Hampton Primary School 1 0 0 100.0 1 67 10 10.0 100.0
2127 Paddock Wood Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 86 11 9.1 0.0
3916 Green Park Community Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 41 11 9.1 0.0
2453 Woodlands Junior School 1 0 0 100.0 1 95 13 7.7 100.0
2245 Rose Street Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 29 13 7.7 0.0
2603 Bromstone Primary School Yes 0 1 0 0.0 1 60 13 7.7 0.0
2009 Northdown Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 47 17 5.9 0.0
2675 John Wallis Primary Academy 2 4 0 33.3 6 53
2035 South Avenue Junior School 1 6 0 14.3 7 60

MIN 5.9 0.0
MAX 100.0 100.0

P
age 26



Appendix 1a Kent Test Results by School (Schools with FSM Cohort of 10+)

Produced by: Management Information, KCC
10/12/2015

Source: PESE 2014 Kent Test Pupils Matched to School Census and CIC May 2014
$sor1wufs.xlsx

DfE School Name
Closed FSM Gap
Consistently L4+

RWM at KS2 -
2013-2015

FSM Pupils entering Kent Test 2014 FSM Pupils on Roll

Assessed
Grammar

Assessed
High Withdrawn % Assessed

Grammar
Number FSM
Cohort
Entered

Total Year 6
Cohort

Total FSM
Cohort in
Year 6

% Year 6
FSM Cohort
Entered

% Year 6
Entered FSM
Cohort
Assessed
Grammar

2264 Hampton Primary School 1 0 0 100.0 1 67 10 10.0 100.0
2453 Woodlands Junior School 1 0 0 100.0 1 95 13 7.7 100.0
3898 Greenfields Community Primary School 3 3 0 50.0 6 44 18 33.3 50.0
2249 Regis Manor Community Primary School 2 2 0 50.0 4 54 15 26.7 50.0
5228 St George's Church of England Primary School (Voluntary Aided) 1 1 0 50.0 2 39 10 20.0 50.0
2024 Copperfield Academy 1 1 0 50.0 2 59 12 16.7 50.0
2608 St Stephen's Junior School 1 1 0 50.0 2 98 12 16.7 50.0
6908 Folkestone Academy 1 1 0 50.0 2 60 12 16.7 50.0
2523 Upton Junior School 3 6 0 33.3 9 125 14 64.3 33.3
3912 Westlands Primary School Yes 1 1 1 33.3 3 60 10 30.0 33.3
5221 Wincheap Foundation Primary School Yes 1 2 0 33.3 3 55 13 23.1 33.3
3909 Ashford Oaks Primary School 1 1 1 33.3 3 52 17 17.6 33.3
3178 Birchington Church of England Primary School 2 5 0 28.6 7 60 13 53.8 28.6
3910 Joy Lane Primary School 1 3 0 25.0 4 55 10 40.0 25.0
2658 Westcourt Primary School Yes 1 3 0 25.0 4 30 11 36.4 25.0
3117 Teynham Parochial Church of England Primary School 1 3 0 25.0 4 29 11 36.4 25.0
3349 St Mary's Church of England Primary School (Folkestone) 1 3 0 25.0 4 53 11 36.4 25.0
2005 York Road Junior Academy 1 3 0 25.0 4 94 15 26.7 25.0
2028 Cliftonville Primary School Yes 3 11 0 21.4 14 90 26 53.8 21.4
3889 St Gregory's Catholic Primary School - Margate 1 4 0 20.0 5 45 10 50.0 20.0
3148 Christ Church Church of England Primary School 2 7 1 20.0 10 59 21 47.6 20.0
2011 Salmestone Primary School 1 4 0 20.0 5 59 12 41.7 20.0
2431 Shears Green Junior School 1 4 0 20.0 5 120 14 35.7 20.0
2010 Newlands Primary School Yes 1 3 1 20.0 5 45 17 29.4 20.0
2434 West Minster Primary School 1 4 0 20.0 5 56 27 18.5 20.0
2444 Riverview Junior School 1 5 0 16.7 6 119 11 54.5 16.7
3133 Kennington Church of England Junior School 1 5 0 16.7 6 83 12 50.0 16.7
2296 Mundella Primary School 0 7 0 0.0 7 19 10 70.0 0.0
5206 Herne Bay Junior School Yes 0 9 1 0.0 10 124 17 58.8 0.0
2171 Brunswick House Primary School 0 5 1 0.0 6 60 11 54.5 0.0
3918 Newington Community Primary School and Nursery 0 11 1 0.0 12 64 24 50.0 0.0
2272 East Stour Primary School 0 7 0 0.0 7 59 16 43.8 0.0
3917 Garlinge Primary School and Nursery 0 7 0 0.0 7 60 16 43.8 0.0
5226 Willesborough Junior School Yes 0 7 0 0.0 7 118 17 41.2 0.0
3904 Castle Hill Community Primary School Yes 0 3 1 0.0 4 27 10 40.0 0.0
2228 Davington Primary School 0 4 0 0.0 4 59 11 36.4 0.0
2017 Drapers Mills Primary Academy Yes 0 10 1 0.0 11 58 31 35.5 0.0
2000 St John's Church of England Primary School (Canterbury) 0 3 1 0.0 4 24 12 33.3 0.0
2510 Cheriton Primary School 0 5 0 0.0 5 60 15 33.3 0.0
2645 Lydd Primary School 0 4 0 0.0 4 38 12 33.3 0.0
3179 Holy Trinity and St John's Church of England Primary School (Margate) 0 4 0 0.0 4 57 14 28.6 0.0
3905 Beaver Green Community Primary School 0 4 0 0.0 4 60 15 26.7 0.0
2237 Queenborough School and Nursery 0 3 1 0.0 4 48 16 25.0 0.0
2014 St Laurence in Thanet Church of England Junior School 0 3 0 0.0 3 63 13 23.1 0.0
2310 Barton Junior School 0 3 0 0.0 3 48 13 23.1 0.0

P
age 27



Appendix 1a Kent Test Results by School (Schools with FSM Cohort of 10+)

Produced by: Management Information, KCC
10/12/2015

Source: PESE 2014 Kent Test Pupils Matched to School Census and CIC May 2014
$sor1wufs.xlsx

5220 Halfway Houses Primary School 0 3 0 0.0 3 68 13 23.1 0.0
3900 Whitehill Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 59 10 20.0 0.0
3914 Oakfield Community Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 69 10 20.0 0.0
2015 Dame Janet Primary Academy 0 3 1 0.0 4 79 22 18.2 0.0
2661 Cage Green Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 52 11 18.2 0.0
5200 Snodland Church of England Voluntary Aided Primary School 0 2 0 0.0 2 43 11 18.2 0.0
2032 Richmond Academy 0 2 1 0.0 3 46 18 16.7 0.0
2636 Edenbridge Primary School Yes 0 2 0 0.0 2 48 13 15.4 0.0
2007 Molehill Copse Primary School 0 3 0 0.0 3 40 21 14.3 0.0
2001 Horizon Primary Academy 0 2 0 0.0 2 24 16 12.5 0.0
2127 Paddock Wood Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 86 11 9.1 0.0
3916 Green Park Community Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 41 11 9.1 0.0
2245 Rose Street Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 29 13 7.7 0.0
2603 Bromstone Primary School Yes 0 1 0 0.0 1 60 13 7.7 0.0
2009 Northdown Primary School 0 1 0 0.0 1 47 17 5.9 0.0

P
age 28



Appendix 2 KS2 2015 v 2014 v 2013 FSM Attainment and Gap

Produced by: Management Information, KCC
10/12/2015

Source: DfE, May 2015 2014 2013 School Census
$sor1wufs.xlsx

2015 2014
FSM Ever No FSM Ever Yes FSM Ever No FSM Ever Yes

Area District DfE School School Sub Type Academy/ Non
Academy

Number in
Y6

Number of
Pupils

% Achieving
L4+ RWM

Number of
Pupils

% FSM Ever
Pupils in
Cohort

% Achieving
L4+ RWM 2015 Gap Number in

Y6
Number of

Pupils
% Achieving
L4+ RWM

Number of
Pupils

East Canterbury 5206 Herne Bay Junior School JUN Non Academy 124 85 91.8 39 31.5 76.9 14.8 123 100 79.0 23
East Canterbury 3338 Herne CEJ School JUN Non Academy 84 69 95.7 15 17.9 100.0 -4.3 90 77 97.4 13
East Canterbury 5221 Wincheap Foundation Primary School PRI Non Academy 54 29 72.4 25 46.3 84.0 -11.6 63 30 90.0 33
East Swale 2254 Canterbury Road Primary School PRI Non Academy 30 16 93.8 14 46.7 92.9 0.9 29 16 87.5 13
East Swale 2230 Iwade School ACA PRI Academy 57 51 88.2 6 10.5 83.3 4.9 60 49 85.7 11
East Swale 2231 Lower Halstow School PRI Non Academy 21 15 86.7 6 28.6 66.7 20.0 19 14 85.7 5
East Swale 3713 St Edward's RCP School, Sheerness PRI Non Academy 27 17 82.4 10 37.0 80.0 2.4 27 18 61.1 9
East Swale 3892 St Mary of Charity CE (Aided) Primary School ACA PRI Academy 21 10 60.0 11 52.4 27.3 32.7 28 17 88.2 11
East Swale 3912 Westlands Primary School, The ACA PRI Academy 59 41 85.4 18 30.5 66.7 18.7 48 37 89.2 11
East Thanet 2603 Bromstone Primary School, Broadstairs PRI Non Academy 59 33 72.7 26 44.1 69.2 3.5 32 16 93.8 16
East Thanet 2020 Christ Church CEJ School, Ramsgate ACA JUN Academy 64 52 86.5 12 18.8 91.7 -5.1 58 40 75.0 18
East Thanet 2028 Cliftonville Primary School ACA PRI Academy 88 37 75.7 51 58.0 74.5 1.2 88 48 79.2 40
East Thanet 2017 Drapers Mills Primary Academy ACA PRI Academy 56 18 38.9 38 67.9 44.7 -5.8 59 23 17.4 36
East Thanet 2010 Newlands Primary School ACA PRI Academy 42 21 76.2 21 50.0 71.4 4.8 39 20 95.0 19
North Dartford 2679 Brent Primary School, The ACA PRI Academy 59 45 88.9 14 23.7 100.0 -11.1 62 43 86.0 19
North Dartford 5229 Fleetdown Primary School PRI Non Academy 62 50 96.0 12 19.4 100.0 -4.0 67 58 91.4 9
North Dartford 3728 St Anselm's Catholic Primary School, Dartford PRI Non Academy 30 26 96.2 4 13.3 100.0 -3.8 28 23 91.3 5
North Gravesham 2095 Cecil Road Primary and Nursery School PRI Non Academy 53 44 79.5 9 17.0 77.8 1.8 54 45 82.2 9
North Gravesham 2658 Westcourt School PRI Non Academy 29 10 80.0 19 65.5 73.7 6.3 28 9 77.8 19
North Gravesham 2666 Wrotham Road Primary School PRI Non Academy 59 42 83.3 17 28.8 52.9 30.4 47 28 67.9 19
North Sevenoaks 3896 Downsview Primary PRI Non Academy 28 22 54.5 6 21.4 83.3 -28.8 17 8 75.0 9
North Sevenoaks 2636 Edenbridge Primary School PRI Non Academy 48 24 75.0 24 50.0 62.5 12.5 38 23 91.3 15
North Sevenoaks 3035 Seal CEP School PRI Non Academy 22 13 100.0 9 40.9 100.0 0.0 16 9 88.9 7
North Sevenoaks 2632 Sevenoaks Primary School PRI Non Academy 60 57 94.7 3 5.0 66.7 28.1 60 52 94.2 8
North Sevenoaks 5214 St Bartholomew's Catholic Primary School PRI Non Academy 52 41 85.4 11 21.2 81.8 3.5 46 38 94.7 8
North Sevenoaks 3201 St Lawrence CEP School PRI Non Academy 12 11 100.0 1 8.3 100.0 0.0 11 9 100.0 2
South Ashford 2686 Furley Park Primary Academy ACA PRI Academy 57 45 88.9 12 21.1 91.7 -2.8 61 56 91.1 5
South Ashford 2282 Great Chart Primary School PRI Non Academy 59 51 98.0 8 13.6 100.0 -2.0 59 48 95.8 11
South Ashford 2286 Hamstreet Primary Academy ACA PRI Academy 44 36 77.8 8 18.2 62.5 15.3 45 35 80.0 10
South Ashford 3139 High Halden CEP School PRI Non Academy 17 13 69.2 4 23.5 75.0 -5.8 14 10 80.0 4
South Ashford 2287 Rolvenden Primary School PRI Non Academy 13 6 66.7 7 53.8 57.1 9.5 15 9 66.7 6
South Ashford 5226 Willesborough Junior School JUN Non Academy 120 84 78.6 36 30.0 63.9 14.7 119 84 81.0 35
South Dover 2454 Aycliffe Community Primary School PRI Non Academy 13 8 75.0 5 38.5 80.0 -5.0 13 5 80.0 8
South Dover 3163 Downs CEP School, The PRI Non Academy 51 37 86.5 14 27.5 64.3 22.2 48 35 88.6 13
South Dover 3167 Eastry CEP School PRI Non Academy 28 22 90.9 6 21.4 83.3 7.6 32 27 88.9 5
South Dover 2315 White Cliffs Primary College for the Arts ACA PRI Academy 17 3 100.0 14 82.4 78.6 21.4 22 10 100.0 12
South Shepway 5224 All Souls' CEP School PRI Non Academy 43 37 89.2 6 14.0 83.3 5.9 45 32 71.9 13
South Shepway 3904 Castle Hill Community Primary School PRI Non Academy 27 13 53.8 14 51.9 57.1 -3.3 29 7 71.4 22
South Shepway 2692 Churchill School, The PRI Non Academy 59 53 96.2 6 10.2 100.0 -3.8 60 50 90.0 10
South Shepway 2650 Dymchurch Primary School ACA PRI Academy 25 16 75.0 9 36.0 88.9 -13.9 22 13 61.5 9
South Shepway 5218 Greatstone Primary School PRI Non Academy 48 31 87.1 17 35.4 70.6 16.5 51 37 78.4 14
South Shepway 3902 Hythe Bay C of E Primary School PRI Non Academy 58 38 86.8 20 34.5 70.0 16.8 60 43 72.1 17
South Shepway 3348 St Eanswythe's CEP School ACA PRI Academy 30 22 90.9 8 26.7 87.5 3.4 32 23 82.6 9
West Maidstone 2163 East Farleigh Primary School PRI Non Academy 30 27 74.1 3 10.0 100.0 -25.9 29 26 76.9 3
West Maidstone 2168 Lenham Primary School PRI Non Academy 30 24 75.0 6 20.0 83.3 -8.3 30 23 87.0 7
West Maidstone 2176 Park Way Primary School PRI Non Academy 43 26 69.2 17 39.5 70.6 -1.4 43 26 69.2 17
West Tonbridge and Malling 2065 Discovery School, The PRI Non Academy 60 54 96.3 6 10.0 83.3 13.0 45 39 94.9 6
West Tonbridge and Malling 5208 Ditton CEJ School JUN Non Academy 55 45 84.4 10 18.2 80.0 4.4 60 47 91.5 13
West Tonbridge and Malling 2562 Lunsford Primary School PRI Non Academy 30 25 96.0 5 16.7 100.0 -4.0 30 26 96.2 4
West Tonbridge and Malling 3325 Platt CEP School PRI Non Academy 19 18 88.9 1 5.3 100.0 -11.1 24 18 88.9 6
West Tonbridge and Malling 3089 St George's CEP School PRI Non Academy 29 22 86.4 7 24.1 85.7 0.6 30 19 84.2 11
West Tunbridge Wells 2490 Bishops Down Primary School PRI Non Academy 30 27 88.9 3 10.0 66.7 22.2 29 23 73.9 6
West Tunbridge Wells 3306 Brenchley & Matfield CEP School PRI Non Academy 24 18 88.9 6 25.0 100.0 -11.1 27 23 87.0 4
West Tunbridge Wells 3754 St Augustine's Catholic Primary School PRI Non Academy 47 43 86.0 4 8.5 100.0 -14.0 44 37 86.5 7
West Tunbridge Wells 2018 Temple Grove Academy ACA PRI Academy 40 17 70.6 23 57.5 47.8 22.8 43 22 54.5 21

P
age 29



Appendix 2 KS2 2015 v 2014 v 2013 FSM Attainment and Gap

Produced by: Management Information, KCC
10/12/2015

Source: DfE, May 2015 2014 2013 School Census
$sor1wufs.xlsx

Area District DfE School

East Canterbury 5206 Herne Bay Junior School
East Canterbury 3338 Herne CEJ School
East Canterbury 5221 Wincheap Foundation Primary School
East Swale 2254 Canterbury Road Primary School
East Swale 2230 Iwade School
East Swale 2231 Lower Halstow School
East Swale 3713 St Edward's RCP School, Sheerness
East Swale 3892 St Mary of Charity CE (Aided) Primary School
East Swale 3912 Westlands Primary School, The
East Thanet 2603 Bromstone Primary School, Broadstairs
East Thanet 2020 Christ Church CEJ School, Ramsgate
East Thanet 2028 Cliftonville Primary School
East Thanet 2017 Drapers Mills Primary Academy
East Thanet 2010 Newlands Primary School
North Dartford 2679 Brent Primary School, The
North Dartford 5229 Fleetdown Primary School
North Dartford 3728 St Anselm's Catholic Primary School, Dartford
North Gravesham 2095 Cecil Road Primary and Nursery School
North Gravesham 2658 Westcourt School
North Gravesham 2666 Wrotham Road Primary School
North Sevenoaks 3896 Downsview Primary
North Sevenoaks 2636 Edenbridge Primary School
North Sevenoaks 3035 Seal CEP School
North Sevenoaks 2632 Sevenoaks Primary School
North Sevenoaks 5214 St Bartholomew's Catholic Primary School
North Sevenoaks 3201 St Lawrence CEP School
South Ashford 2686 Furley Park Primary Academy
South Ashford 2282 Great Chart Primary School
South Ashford 2286 Hamstreet Primary Academy
South Ashford 3139 High Halden CEP School
South Ashford 2287 Rolvenden Primary School
South Ashford 5226 Willesborough Junior School
South Dover 2454 Aycliffe Community Primary School
South Dover 3163 Downs CEP School, The
South Dover 3167 Eastry CEP School
South Dover 2315 White Cliffs Primary College for the Arts
South Shepway 5224 All Souls' CEP School
South Shepway 3904 Castle Hill Community Primary School
South Shepway 2692 Churchill School, The
South Shepway 2650 Dymchurch Primary School
South Shepway 5218 Greatstone Primary School
South Shepway 3902 Hythe Bay C of E Primary School
South Shepway 3348 St Eanswythe's CEP School
West Maidstone 2163 East Farleigh Primary School
West Maidstone 2168 Lenham Primary School
West Maidstone 2176 Park Way Primary School
West Tonbridge and Malling 2065 Discovery School, The
West Tonbridge and Malling 5208 Ditton CEJ School
West Tonbridge and Malling 2562 Lunsford Primary School
West Tonbridge and Malling 3325 Platt CEP School
West Tonbridge and Malling 3089 St George's CEP School
West Tunbridge Wells 2490 Bishops Down Primary School
West Tunbridge Wells 3306 Brenchley & Matfield CEP School
West Tunbridge Wells 3754 St Augustine's Catholic Primary School
West Tunbridge Wells 2018 Temple Grove Academy

2013
FSM Ever No FSM Ever Yes

% FSM Ever
Pupils in
Cohort

% Achieving
L4+ RWM 2014 Gap Number in

Y6
Number of

Pupils
% Achieving
L4+ RWM

Number of
Pupils

% FSM Ever
Pupils in
Cohort

% Achieving
L4+ RWM 2013 Gap Closed Gap

2015 v 2014
Closed Gap

2014 v 2013

Closed Gap
Consistently
2013-2015

18.7 60.9 18.1 125 98 76.5 27 21.6 55.6 21.0 Yes Yes Yes
14.4 92.3 5.1 91 72 88.9 19 20.9 57.9 31.0 Yes Yes Yes
52.4 69.7 20.3 48 27 88.9 21 43.8 47.6 41.3 Yes Yes Yes
44.8 84.6 2.9 30 19 84.2 11 36.7 45.5 38.8 Yes Yes Yes
18.3 72.7 13.0 58 53 67.9 5 8.6 0.0 67.9 Yes Yes Yes
26.3 60.0 25.7 17 11 100.0 6 35.3 16.7 83.3 Yes Yes Yes
33.3 55.6 5.6 26 14 64.3 12 46.2 41.7 22.6 Yes Yes Yes
39.3 45.5 42.8 25 11 63.6 14 56.0 14.3 49.4 Yes Yes Yes
22.9 54.5 34.6 59 31 74.2 28 47.5 35.7 38.5 Yes Yes Yes
50.0 87.5 6.3 46 27 70.4 19 41.3 52.6 17.7 Yes Yes Yes
31.0 66.7 8.3 55 42 71.4 13 23.6 46.2 25.3 Yes Yes Yes
45.5 60.0 19.2 81 45 77.8 36 44.4 58.3 19.4 Yes Yes Yes
61.0 16.7 0.7 48 16 50.0 32 66.7 31.3 18.8 Yes Yes Yes
48.7 68.4 26.6 49 18 88.9 31 63.3 61.3 27.6 Yes Yes Yes
30.6 78.9 7.1 56 39 84.6 17 30.4 76.5 8.1 Yes Yes Yes
13.4 66.7 24.7 71 55 89.1 16 22.5 62.5 26.6 Yes Yes Yes
17.9 80.0 11.3 30 28 85.7 2 6.7 0.0 85.7 Yes Yes Yes
16.7 77.8 4.4 54 43 79.1 11 20.4 63.6 15.4 Yes Yes Yes
67.9 63.2 14.6 26 9 77.8 17 65.4 35.3 42.5 Yes Yes Yes
40.4 31.6 36.3 57 45 73.3 12 21.1 25.0 48.3 Yes Yes Yes
52.9 66.7 8.3 10 4 100.0 6 60.0 83.3 16.7 Yes Yes Yes
39.5 73.3 18.0 32 15 80.0 17 53.1 58.8 21.2 Yes Yes Yes
43.8 71.4 17.5 22 11 90.9 11 50.0 72.7 18.2 Yes Yes Yes
13.3 62.5 31.7 57 51 94.1 6 10.5 50.0 44.1 Yes Yes Yes
17.4 87.5 7.2 38 26 92.3 12 31.6 83.3 9.0 Yes Yes Yes
18.2 50.0 50.0 12 10 100.0 2 16.7 0.0 100.0 Yes Yes Yes
8.2 80.0 11.1 59 45 80.0 14 23.7 64.3 15.7 Yes Yes Yes
18.6 90.9 4.9 64 53 83.0 11 17.2 72.7 10.3 Yes Yes Yes
22.2 60.0 20.0 43 36 88.9 7 16.3 42.9 46.0 Yes Yes Yes
28.6 75.0 5.0 13 10 60.0 3 23.1 33.3 26.7 Yes Yes Yes
40.0 50.0 16.7 7 5 80.0 2 28.6 50.0 30.0 Yes Yes Yes
29.4 65.7 15.2 120 93 84.9 27 22.5 66.7 18.3 Yes Yes Yes
61.5 75.0 5.0 13 9 55.6 4 30.8 0.0 55.6 Yes Yes Yes
27.1 61.5 27.0 52 45 73.3 7 13.5 28.6 44.8 Yes Yes Yes
15.6 80.0 8.9 31 27 74.1 4 12.9 0.0 74.1 Yes Yes Yes
54.5 75.0 25.0 25 6 100.0 19 76.0 68.4 31.6 Yes Yes Yes
28.9 61.5 10.3 41 35 80.0 6 14.6 50.0 30.0 Yes Yes Yes
75.9 54.5 16.9 38 7 85.7 31 81.6 45.2 40.6 Yes Yes Yes
16.7 80.0 10.0 55 50 84.0 5 9.1 40.0 44.0 Yes Yes Yes
40.9 55.6 6.0 29 20 90.0 9 31.0 44.4 45.6 Yes Yes Yes
27.5 57.1 21.2 43 26 88.5 17 39.5 52.9 35.5 Yes Yes Yes
28.3 52.9 19.2 47 32 84.4 15 31.9 60.0 24.4 Yes Yes Yes
28.1 77.8 4.8 30 13 69.2 17 56.7 58.8 10.4 Yes Yes Yes
10.3 33.3 43.6 30 24 91.7 6 20.0 0.0 91.7 Yes Yes Yes
23.3 57.1 29.8 31 27 70.4 4 12.9 25.0 45.4 Yes Yes Yes
39.5 64.7 4.5 37 22 77.3 15 40.5 40.0 37.3 Yes Yes Yes
13.3 66.7 28.2 43 36 86.1 7 16.3 57.1 29.0 Yes Yes Yes
21.7 69.2 22.3 53 39 71.8 14 26.4 42.9 28.9 Yes Yes Yes
13.3 50.0 46.2 31 30 100.0 1 3.2 0.0 100.0 Yes Yes Yes
25.0 66.7 22.2 25 22 90.9 3 12.0 33.3 57.6 Yes Yes Yes
36.7 81.8 2.4 26 18 94.4 8 30.8 75.0 19.4 Yes Yes Yes
20.7 33.3 40.6 27 24 75.0 3 11.1 33.3 41.7 Yes Yes Yes
14.8 75.0 12.0 26 22 90.9 4 15.4 50.0 40.9 Yes Yes Yes
15.9 71.4 15.1 44 40 87.5 4 9.1 50.0 37.5 Yes Yes Yes
48.8 28.6 26.0 23 8 75.0 15 65.2 46.7 28.3 Yes Yes Yes

2014
FSM Ever Yes

P
age 30



Appendix 2 KS2 2015 v 2014 v 2013 FSM Attainment and Gap

Produced by: Management Information, KCC
10/12/2015

Source: DfE, May 2015 2014 2013 School Census
$sor1wufs.xlsx

Area District DfE School

East Canterbury 5206 Herne Bay Junior School
East Canterbury 3338 Herne CEJ School
East Canterbury 5221 Wincheap Foundation Primary School
East Swale 2254 Canterbury Road Primary School
East Swale 2230 Iwade School
East Swale 2231 Lower Halstow School
East Swale 3713 St Edward's RCP School, Sheerness
East Swale 3892 St Mary of Charity CE (Aided) Primary School
East Swale 3912 Westlands Primary School, The
East Thanet 2603 Bromstone Primary School, Broadstairs
East Thanet 2020 Christ Church CEJ School, Ramsgate
East Thanet 2028 Cliftonville Primary School
East Thanet 2017 Drapers Mills Primary Academy
East Thanet 2010 Newlands Primary School
North Dartford 2679 Brent Primary School, The
North Dartford 5229 Fleetdown Primary School
North Dartford 3728 St Anselm's Catholic Primary School, Dartford
North Gravesham 2095 Cecil Road Primary and Nursery School
North Gravesham 2658 Westcourt School
North Gravesham 2666 Wrotham Road Primary School
North Sevenoaks 3896 Downsview Primary
North Sevenoaks 2636 Edenbridge Primary School
North Sevenoaks 3035 Seal CEP School
North Sevenoaks 2632 Sevenoaks Primary School
North Sevenoaks 5214 St Bartholomew's Catholic Primary School
North Sevenoaks 3201 St Lawrence CEP School
South Ashford 2686 Furley Park Primary Academy
South Ashford 2282 Great Chart Primary School
South Ashford 2286 Hamstreet Primary Academy
South Ashford 3139 High Halden CEP School
South Ashford 2287 Rolvenden Primary School
South Ashford 5226 Willesborough Junior School
South Dover 2454 Aycliffe Community Primary School
South Dover 3163 Downs CEP School, The
South Dover 3167 Eastry CEP School
South Dover 2315 White Cliffs Primary College for the Arts
South Shepway 5224 All Souls' CEP School
South Shepway 3904 Castle Hill Community Primary School
South Shepway 2692 Churchill School, The
South Shepway 2650 Dymchurch Primary School
South Shepway 5218 Greatstone Primary School
South Shepway 3902 Hythe Bay C of E Primary School
South Shepway 3348 St Eanswythe's CEP School
West Maidstone 2163 East Farleigh Primary School
West Maidstone 2168 Lenham Primary School
West Maidstone 2176 Park Way Primary School
West Tonbridge and Malling 2065 Discovery School, The
West Tonbridge and Malling 5208 Ditton CEJ School
West Tonbridge and Malling 2562 Lunsford Primary School
West Tonbridge and Malling 3325 Platt CEP School
West Tonbridge and Malling 3089 St George's CEP School
West Tunbridge Wells 2490 Bishops Down Primary School
West Tunbridge Wells 3306 Brenchley & Matfield CEP School
West Tunbridge Wells 3754 St Augustine's Catholic Primary School
West Tunbridge Wells 2018 Temple Grove Academy

2015 2014 2013

Increased
% FSM
Cohort

Achieving
L5+ RWM

FSM Ever Yes FSM Ever Yes FSM Ever Yes

Number of
Pupils

Number
Achieving
L5+ RWM

% Achieving
L5+ RWM

Number of
Pupils

Number
Achieving
L5+ RWM

% Achieving
L5+ RWM

Number of
Pupils

Number
Achieving
L5+ RWM

% Achieving
L5+ RWM

39 9 23.1 23 3 13.0 27 3 11.1 Yes
15 4 26.7 13 5 38.5 19 2 10.5
25 0 0.0 33 0 0.0 21 2 9.5
14 5 35.7 13 4 30.8 11 2 18.2 Yes
6 1 16.7 11 2 18.2 5 0 0.0
6 0 0.0 5 0 0.0 6 0 0.0
10 1 10.0 9 0 0.0 12 0 0.0 Yes
11 0 0.0 11 1 9.1 14 0 0.0
18 1 5.6 11 0 0.0 28 1 3.6
26 0 0.0 16 1 6.3 19 3 15.8
12 3 25.0 18 0 0.0 13 1 7.7
51 5 9.8 40 3 7.5 36 3 8.3
38 0 0.0 36 0 0.0 32 0 0.0
21 1 4.8 19 3 15.8 31 0 0.0
14 2 14.3 19 6 31.6 17 2 11.8
12 6 50.0 9 2 22.2 16 2 12.5 Yes
4 0 0.0 5 1 20.0 2 0 0.0
9 1 11.1 9 2 22.2 11 1 9.1
19 1 5.3 19 2 10.5 17 3 17.6
17 1 5.9 19 1 5.3 12 0 0.0 Yes
6 1 16.7 9 2 22.2 6 0 0.0
24 2 8.3 15 0 0.0 17 3 17.6
9 1 11.1 7 1 14.3 11 1 9.1
3 0 0.0 8 1 12.5 6 0 0.0
11 4 36.4 8 2 25.0 12 2 16.7 Yes
1 0 0.0 2 0 0.0 2 0 0.0
12 1 8.3 5 1 20.0 14 1 7.1
8 4 50.0 11 5 45.5 11 2 18.2 Yes
8 1 12.5 10 2 20.0 7 0 0.0
4 0 0.0 4 0 0.0 3 0 0.0
7 1 14.3 6 1 16.7 2 0 0.0
36 0 0.0 35 3 8.6 27 2 7.4
5 1 20.0 8 1 12.5 4 0 0.0 Yes
14 0 0.0 13 1 7.7 7 0 0.0
6 0 0.0 5 1 20.0 4 0 0.0
14 3 21.4 12 2 16.7 19 0 0.0 Yes
6 0 0.0 13 0 0.0 6 2 33.3
14 1 7.1 22 1 4.5 31 2 6.5
6 0 0.0 10 3 30.0 5 0 0.0
9 1 11.1 9 2 22.2 9 0 0.0
17 1 5.9 14 1 7.1 17 0 0.0
20 0 0.0 17 1 5.9 15 1 6.7
8 3 37.5 9 2 22.2 17 4 23.5
3 0 0.0 3 1 33.3 6 0 0.0
6 1 16.7 7 2 28.6 4 0 0.0
17 1 5.9 17 0 0.0 15 0 0.0 Yes
6 3 50.0 6 2 33.3 7 0 0.0 Yes
10 3 30.0 13 3 23.1 14 1 7.1 Yes
5 1 20.0 4 0 0.0 1 0 0.0 Yes
1 0 0.0 6 0 0.0 3 0 0.0
7 2 28.6 11 2 18.2 8 1 12.5 Yes
3 2 66.7 6 0 0.0 3 0 0.0 Yes
6 2 33.3 4 0 0.0 4 1 25.0
4 2 50.0 7 1 14.3 4 0 0.0 Yes
23 0 0.0 21 0 0.0 15 1 6.7

P
age 31



Appendix 3 2015 Year 11 KS4 FSM Eligibility Attainment Gap for Pupils in Kent LA Grammar Schools
Based on NCER October 2015 Released Dataset

Management Information, KCC
17/12/2015

Source: NCER 2015 KS4 Provisional Dataset, May 2015 School Census
$sor1wufs.xlsx 

DfE School FSM Eligible Total KS4
Pupils

% 5+
A*-C EM

% 5+
A*-C

% 5+
A*-A

% 3+
A*-A

% 5+
A*-G

% Eng
A*-C

% Maths

A*-C

% Eng &
Maths
A*-C

%
E Bacc

% Any
Pass

Uncapped

APS
Capped
APS

% 3LP
Eng

% 3LP
Maths

Kent LA Grammar Schools Total
No 4530 96.5 98.6 54.0 68.6 99.9 97.8 98.9 97.0 66.7 100.0 512.9 398.9 92.2 92.5
Yes 116 94.8 96.6 40.5 54.3 98.3 97.4 96.6 94.8 62.1 99.1 489.0 382.1 85.2 84.5

Gap (N-Y) 1.7 2.0 13.5 14.3 1.6 0.4 2.4 2.1 4.6 0.8 23.9 16.8 7.0 8.0

4043 Tunbridge Wells Girls' Grammar School
No 147 99.3 99.3 77.6 87.8 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 91.8 100.0 553.2 427.4 98.6 96.6
Yes 0

Gap (N-Y)

4045 Tunbridge Wells Grammar School for Boys
No 177 96.0 98.9 54.2 75.1 99.4 96.0 99.4 96.0 67.8 99.4 485.6 400.9 93.7 92.7
Yes 4 100.0 100.0 50.0 50.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 50.0 100.0 453.0 384.5 100.0 75.0

Gap (N-Y) -4.0 -1.1 4.2 25.1 -0.6 -4.0 -0.6 -4.0 17.8 -0.6 32.6 16.4 -6.3 17.7

4046 Weald of Kent Grammar School
No 163 99.4 100.0 70.6 81.6 100.0 100.0 99.4 99.4 81.6 100.0 564.8 413.2 99.4 92.0
Yes 3 100.0 100.0 66.7 66.7 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 565.3 414.0 100.0 66.7

Gap (N-Y) -0.6 0.0 3.9 14.9 0.0 0.0 -0.6 -0.6 -18.4 0.0 -0.6 -0.8 -0.6 25.4

4058 Invicta Grammar School
No 171 98.8 100.0 57.9 74.9 100.0 99.4 99.4 98.8 62.6 100.0 519.3 413.9 98.8 97.1
Yes 3 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 531.3 424.0 100.0 100.0

Gap (N-Y) -1.2 0.0 -42.1 -25.1 0.0 -0.6 -0.6 -1.2 -37.4 0.0 -12.0 -10.1 -1.2 -2.9

4080 Highsted Grammar School
No 123 97.6 99.2 42.3 60.2 100.0 100.0 97.6 97.6 82.9 100.0 474.5 391.6 95.1 84.6
Yes 3 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 553.3 436.0 100.0 100.0

Gap (N-Y) -2.4 -0.8 -57.7 -39.8 0.0 0.0 -2.4 -2.4 -17.1 0.0 -78.9 -44.4 -4.9 -15.4

4092 Highworth Grammar School
No 176 98.3 100.0 60.8 73.3 100.0 99.4 98.9 98.3 88.1 100.0 569.3 407.3 95.5 94.9
Yes 6 83.3 83.3 50.0 50.0 83.3 83.3 100.0 83.3 66.7 100.0 495.7 366.3 83.3 83.3

Gap (N-Y) 15.0 16.7 10.8 23.3 16.7 16.1 -1.1 15.0 21.4 0.0 73.6 41.0 12.1 11.6

4101 Harvey Grammar School, The
No 132 93.9 98.5 23.5 38.6 100.0 93.9 98.5 93.9 41.7 100.0 464.7 383.0 84.5 78.6
Yes 5 100.0 100.0 0.0 20.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 40.0 100.0 444.8 376.4 100.0 100.0

Gap (N-Y) -6.1 -1.5 23.5 18.6 0.0 -6.1 -1.5 -6.1 1.7 0.0 19.9 6.6 -15.5 -21.4

4109 Dover Grammar School for Girls
No 108 93.5 99.1 39.8 56.5 100.0 98.1 95.4 93.5 78.7 100.0 485.0 390.3 92.5 83.0
Yes 6 100.0 100.0 16.7 33.3 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 66.7 100.0 441.3 365.0 100.0 83.3

Gap (N-Y) -6.5 -0.9 23.1 23.1 0.0 -1.9 -4.6 -6.5 12.0 0.0 43.7 25.3 -7.5 -0.3

4522 Maidstone Grammar School
No 173 96.0 97.7 39.3 61.8 100.0 96.0 100.0 96.0 0.0 100.0 432.8 391.5 80.1 98.3
Yes 3 100.0 100.0 33.3 66.7 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 0.0 100.0 437.3 382.0 33.3 100.0

Gap (N-Y) -4.0 -2.3 6.0 -4.8 0.0 -4.0 0.0 -4.0 0.0 0.0 -4.5 9.5 46.8 -1.7

4523 Maidstone Grammar School for Girls
No 173 97.1 99.4 66.5 76.3 100.0 98.3 98.8 97.1 90.2 100.0 606.5 409.7 94.8 93.1
Yes 4 100.0 100.0 50.0 75.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 75.0 100.0 582.0 401.0 75.0 75.0

Gap (N-Y) -2.9 -0.6 16.5 1.3 0.0 -1.7 -1.2 -2.9 15.2 0.0 24.5 8.7 19.8 18.1

4527 Borden Grammar School
No 101 95.0 97.0 39.6 52.5 100.0 96.0 98.0 95.0 65.3 100.0 490.4 387.1 85.0 88.0
Yes 6 83.3 100.0 50.0 66.7 100.0 100.0 83.3 83.3 66.7 100.0 497.3 397.0 100.0 83.3

Gap (N-Y) 11.7 -3.0 -10.4 -14.2 0.0 -4.0 14.7 11.7 -1.3 0.0 -6.9 -9.9 -15.0 4.7

P
age 32



Appendix 3 2015 Year 11 KS4 FSM Eligibility Attainment Gap for Pupils in Kent LA Grammar Schools
Based on NCER October 2015 Released Dataset

Management Information, KCC
17/12/2015

Source: NCER 2015 KS4 Provisional Dataset, May 2015 School Census
$sor1wufs.xlsx 

DfE School FSM Eligible Total KS4
Pupils

% 5+
A*-C EM

% 5+
A*-C

% 5+
A*-A

% 3+
A*-A

% 5+
A*-G

% Eng
A*-C

% Maths

A*-C

% Eng &
Maths
A*-C

%
E Bacc

% Any
Pass

Uncapped

APS
Capped
APS

% 3LP
Eng

% 3LP
Maths

4528 Norton Knatchbull School, The
No 140 95.7 97.1 46.4 62.9 99.3 97.9 99.3 97.1 69.3 100.0 519.6 390.2 89.9 88.4
Yes 8 75.0 87.5 12.5 25.0 100.0 100.0 75.0 75.0 25.0 100.0 437.8 340.0 87.5 50.0

Gap (N-Y) 20.7 9.6 33.9 37.9 -0.7 -2.1 24.3 22.1 44.3 0.0 81.9 50.2 2.4 38.4

4534 Simon Langton Girls' Grammar School
No 153 95.4 96.1 52.9 66.7 100.0 98.7 99.3 98.0 76.5 100.0 483.8 398.1 92.2 90.8
Yes 0

Gap (N-Y)

4622 Judd School, The
No 127 99.2 100.0 96.1 98.4 100.0 99.2 100.0 99.2 86.6 100.0 567.4 446.3 99.2 100.0
Yes 2 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 576.0 449.0 100.0 100.0

Gap (N-Y) -0.8 0.0 -3.9 -1.6 0.0 -0.8 0.0 -0.8 -13.4 0.0 -8.6 -2.7 -0.8 0.0

5400 Wilmington Grammar School for Girls
No 119 97.5 99.2 58.8 78.2 100.0 99.2 98.3 97.5 86.6 100.0 527.5 405.2 94.1 92.4
Yes 3 100.0 100.0 66.7 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 626.7 440.0 100.0 66.7

Gap (N-Y) -2.5 -0.8 -7.8 -21.8 0.0 -0.8 -1.7 -2.5 -13.4 0.0 -99.1 -34.8 -5.9 25.8

5403 Wilmington Grammar School for Boys
No 120 94.2 96.7 27.5 45.0 100.0 96.7 100.0 96.7 40.0 100.0 468.0 377.6 87.3 88.3
Yes 2 100.0 100.0 0.0 50.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 50.0 100.0 439.0 362.0 100.0 100.0

Gap (N-Y) -5.8 -3.3 27.5 -5.0 0.0 -3.3 0.0 -3.3 -10.0 0.0 29.0 15.6 -12.7 -11.7

5406 Dartford Grammar School
No 147 100.0 100.0 72.8 87.1 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 98.0 100.0 552.4 418.4 97.3 98.0
Yes 4 100.0 100.0 50.0 75.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 548.0 410.0 100.0 100.0

Gap (N-Y) 0.0 0.0 22.8 12.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -2.0 0.0 4.4 8.4 -2.7 -2.0

5411 Dartford Grammar School for Girls
No 162 98.8 99.4 72.2 84.0 100.0 99.4 98.8 98.8 74.1 100.0 548.5 415.6 93.8 93.2
Yes 3 100.0 100.0 33.3 66.7 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 66.7 100.0 486.0 394.0 66.7 100.0

Gap (N-Y) -1.2 -0.6 38.9 17.3 0.0 -0.6 -1.2 -1.2 7.4 0.0 62.5 21.6 27.2 -6.8

5412 Simon Langton Grammar School for Boys
No 124 97.6 100.0 50.0 66.9 100.0 98.4 99.2 97.6 79.0 100.0 483.0 393.8 93.3 93.4
Yes 3 100.0 100.0 33.3 33.3 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 502.7 388.0 66.7 100.0

Gap (N-Y) -2.4 0.0 16.7 33.6 0.0 -1.6 -0.8 -2.4 -21.0 0.0 -19.7 5.8 26.7 -6.6

5416 Cranbrook School
No 143 100.0 100.0 70.6 83.9 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 79.0 100.0 559.0 414.0 98.4 100.0
Yes 4 75.0 75.0 0.0 25.0 75.0 75.0 75.0 75.0 50.0 75.0 306.0 276.0 33.3 50.0

Gap (N-Y) 25.0 25.0 70.6 58.9 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 29.0 25.0 253.0 138.0 65.1 50.0

5418 Skinners' School, The
No 122 99.2 99.2 83.6 98.4 99.2 99.2 99.2 99.2 88.5 99.2 582.6 431.4 95.8 99.2
Yes 1 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 0.0 100.0 524.0 404.0 100.0 100.0

Gap (N-Y) -0.8 -0.8 -16.4 -1.6 -0.8 -0.8 -0.8 -0.8 88.5 -0.8 58.6 27.4 -4.2 -0.8

5422 Oakwood Park Grammar School, Maidstone
No 149 90.6 94.6 33.6 49.7 100.0 93.3 98.7 92.6 55.7 100.0 538.7 379.4 88.4 83.8
Yes 3 100.0 100.0 0.0 33.3 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 508.0 362.0 66.7 66.7

Gap (N-Y) -9.4 -5.4 33.6 16.3 0.0 -6.7 -1.3 -7.4 -44.3 0.0 30.7 17.4 21.8 17.1

5428 Sir Roger Manwood's School
No 125 92.0 98.4 49.6 60.8 100.0 92.8 98.4 92.0 71.2 100.0 530.4 396.9 79.8 96.0
Yes 4 100.0 100.0 75.0 75.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 75.0 100.0 539.0 408.5 75.0 100.0

Gap (N-Y) -8.0 -1.6 -25.4 -14.2 0.0 -7.2 -1.6 -8.0 -3.8 0.0 -8.6 -11.6 4.8 -4.0

P
age 33



Appendix 3 2015 Year 11 KS4 FSM Eligibility Attainment Gap for Pupils in Kent LA Grammar Schools
Based on NCER October 2015 Released Dataset

Management Information, KCC
17/12/2015

Source: NCER 2015 KS4 Provisional Dataset, May 2015 School Census
$sor1wufs.xlsx 

DfE School FSM Eligible Total KS4
Pupils

% 5+
A*-C EM

% 5+
A*-C

% 5+
A*-A

% 3+
A*-A

% 5+
A*-G

% Eng
A*-C

% Maths

A*-C

% Eng &
Maths
A*-C

%
E Bacc

% Any
Pass

Uncapped

APS
Capped
APS

% 3LP
Eng

% 3LP
Maths

5437 Folkestone School for Girls, The
No 140 100.0 100.0 47.9 61.4 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 65.0 100.0 594.5 396.8 97.8 99.3
Yes 6 100.0 100.0 83.3 83.3 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 66.7 100.0 598.3 405.0 100.0 100.0

Gap (N-Y) 0.0 0.0 -35.5 -21.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -1.7 0.0 -3.9 -8.2 -2.2 -0.7

5443 Tonbridge Grammar School
No 146 98.6 99.3 82.2 95.9 100.0 99.3 100.0 99.3 0.0 100.0 355.3 354.9 99.3 100.0
Yes 0

Gap (N-Y)

5444 Barton Court Grammar School
No 120 93.3 98.3 45.8 59.2 100.0 94.2 98.3 93.3 77.5 100.0 509.6 390.2 83.9 92.4
Yes 6 100.0 100.0 16.7 50.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 66.7 100.0 490.3 378.0 83.3 83.3

Gap (N-Y) -6.7 -1.7 29.2 9.2 0.0 -5.8 -1.7 -6.7 10.8 0.0 19.3 12.2 0.6 9.0

5449 Queen Elizabeth's Grammar School
No 117 94.0 97.4 47.0 59.8 100.0 94.0 100.0 94.0 69.2 100.0 545.5 392.8 82.9 94.9
Yes 3 100.0 100.0 33.3 33.3 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 33.3 100.0 524.0 372.0 33.3 100.0

Gap (N-Y) -6.0 -2.6 13.7 26.5 0.0 -6.0 0.0 -6.0 35.9 0.0 21.5 20.8 49.6 -5.1

5459 Dover Grammar School for Boys
No 115 93.0 98.3 24.3 40.0 100.0 95.7 96.5 93.0 31.3 100.0 453.5 372.8 90.4 89.5
Yes 3 100.0 100.0 33.3 33.3 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 33.3 100.0 432.7 366.0 100.0 100.0

Gap (N-Y) -7.0 -1.7 -9.0 6.7 0.0 -4.3 -3.5 -7.0 -2.0 0.0 20.8 6.8 -9.6 -10.5

5460 Dane Court Grammar School
No 169 92.9 97.6 46.2 56.8 99.4 94.7 98.8 93.5 71.6 100.0 497.1 390.4 77.5 89.9
Yes 5 80.0 80.0 20.0 40.0 100.0 80.0 100.0 80.0 60.0 100.0 414.8 341.6 60.0 60.0

Gap (N-Y) 12.9 17.6 26.2 16.8 -0.6 14.7 -1.2 13.5 11.6 0.0 82.3 48.8 17.5 29.9

5462 Chatham & Clarendon Grammar School
No 154 96.1 98.1 46.1 66.2 99.4 98.7 97.4 96.8 55.2 100.0 472.5 393.2 96.7 90.2
Yes 7 100.0 100.0 28.6 42.9 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 28.6 100.0 424.6 380.0 85.7 100.0

Gap (N-Y) -3.9 -1.9 17.5 23.4 -0.6 -1.3 -2.6 -3.2 26.6 0.0 47.9 13.2 11.0 -9.8

5465 Gravesend Grammar School
No 151 95.4 96.7 42.4 59.6 100.0 98.7 98.0 96.7 62.9 100.0 501.1 393.1 92.7 94.0
Yes 3 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 572.7 434.0 100.0 100.0

Gap (N-Y) -4.6 -3.3 -57.6 -40.4 0.0 -1.3 -2.0 -3.3 -37.1 0.0 -71.6 -40.9 -7.3 -6.0

5467 Mayfield Grammar School, Gravesend
No 143 96.5 98.6 38.5 53.1 100.0 100.0 97.9 97.9 51.7 100.0 447.0 380.9 95.0 79.6
Yes 3 100.0 100.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 33.3 100.0 443.7 366.0 100.0 66.7

Gap (N-Y) -3.5 -1.4 38.5 53.1 0.0 0.0 -2.1 -2.1 18.4 0.0 3.3 14.9 -5.0 12.9

Notes:
Data is based on pupils matched from 2015 NCER KS4 Provisional dataset to FSM eligibility status in May 2015 school census
All 2015 KS4 outcome data is provisional and subject to change 

P
age 34



Select Committee – Grammar Schools and Social Mobility

1 February 2016

Biography

Patrick Leeson – Corporate Director Education and Young People Services 
- KCC

Patrick Leeson is Corporate Director for Education and Young People’s Services, 
for Kent County Council.  Previously he was Director, Education and Care, for 
Ofsted where he was responsible for policy on inspection of schools, initial 
teacher education, children’s centres, early years and childcare, as well as the 
annual assessments of Local Authority Children’s Services. 

Prior to joining Ofsted he was Strategic Director of Learning and Children’s 
Services for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames, between 2002 and 
2009, where we was responsible for education, children’s social services as well 
as arts, libraries and adult education.  

Patrick has worked as a teacher and headteacher in secondary schools, and as 
an adviser and inspector before taking up senior officer roles in local government 
education and children’s services.   

Patrick is a past Chair of the Association of London Directors of Children’s 
Services (ALDCS) and was also on the national council for the Association of 
Directors of Children’s Services (ADCS).  He has been a member of the Advisory 
Groups for reviews of the Teacher Standards and the National Curriculum, and 
was on the steering group for the Tickell Review of the Early Years Foundation 
Stage.   

Page 35

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Roger Gough – Biography

Roger Gough is Cabinet Member for Education and Health Reform, and has served 
in a variety of Cabinet roles since 2006.  He has served as the Conservative Member 
for Darent Valley since 2005.  He has chaired the Kent Health and Wellbeing Board 
since it was established in shadow form in September 2011.  

He worked in investment banking for sixteen years until 2002, mainly as an 
investment analyst specialising in the banking industry. From 1988 to 1991, Mr 
Gough lived and worked in Tokyo as an analyst of the Japanese financial sector; he 
was subsequently an analyst of the European banking industry.

He was a Research Director of Policy Exchange from 2006 – 2009 and served as 
Rapporteur to Ken Clarke’s Democracy Task Force from 2006 – 2008. He has 
written widely on policy issues, chiefly constitutional and local government matters. 
His study of international comparisons in local government ‘With a Little Help from 
Our Friends’ was published by Localis in 2009.

His first book, ‘A Good Comrade: János Kádár, Communism and Hungary’ was 
published in September 2006. For this book he was awarded the Knights Cross of 
the Order of Merit of the Republic of Hungary. 

His second book, ‘Account Rendered’ (co-authored with Stuart McCracken and 
Andrew Tyrie MP) was published by Biteback in July 2011. It examines Britain’s role 
in the transfer of terror suspects for the American government.

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Select Committee - Grammar School and Social Mobility

Hearing 1: Monday 1st February 2016

Witness Guide for Members 

Below are suggested themes and questions. They have be provided in advance to 
the witnesses to allow them to prepare for the types of issues that Members may be 
interested to explore. All Members are welcome to ask these questions or pose 
additional ones to the witnesses via the Committee Chairman.  

Themes and Questions

Roger Gough, Cabinet Member for Education and Health Reform, and
Patrick Leeson, Corporate Director – Education and Young People’s Services 
(Kent County Council)

 Please introduce yourselves and provide an outline of the role and responsibilities 
of your posts.

 Less than 3% of all pupils going to Grammar schools are entitled to FSM, against 
13% in non-selective schools in Kent. This is compared to Northern Ireland, for 
example, where 7% of pupils on FSM attend Grammar schools. Why is this?

 Why are academically high achieving FSM children less likely to apply for and 
secure a place at a Grammar school than there non FSM peers, despite the fact 
they may have a high KS2 test result?

 How is Pupil Premium funding being used to narrow the gap and has it been 
successful to date?  

 What steps are being taken to identify children on FSM as early as KS1 who 
should be entered for the Kent Test and how is the Pupil Premium used to support 
their journey to grammar education?

 Is the increased numbers of free schools and academies in Kent having any 
bearing on parents and children choosing selective or non-selective education?  

 What changes has Kent made to improve fair access for low income families to 
grammar schools? For example, testing, test preparation, outreach, admissions or 
collaborations. And, what impact have these had?

 How can Grammar schools in Kent open themselves up to more disadvantaged 
students and increase the proportion of FSM and CIC pupils on their rolls? For 
example, through giving priority to academically high achieving pupils applying for 
admission, who are in receipt of the Pupil Premium?

 How can KCC influence the proportion of FSM and CIC children accessing 
Grammar schools given that individual schools, and particularly Academy 
Grammar schools, have their own admissions policies? 

 The Sutton Trust has reported that parents from disadvantaged backgrounds 
often associate their schools with tradition, middle class values and elitism, 
creating a social rather than an educational barrier to make them reluctant to send 

Page 39



their children to the local grammar. Do you think this is true and if so, how can we 
mitigate this perception?

 How can KCC, in partnership with schools, support children, parents and schools 
to ensure fairer access to a Grammar school education for FSM children and 
Children in Care?

 Who decides if a child in care should take the Kent Test?
 Are there any other issues that you would like raise with the Committee?

Page 40


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 16 December 2015
	Term of Reference
	Term of Reference

	2 Katherine Atkinson, Head of Information and Intelligence (KCC)
	Select Committee Evidence Session 1 Questions
	EYPS Report to Grammar School Select Committee 200116
	EYPS Report to Grammar School Select Committee 211215 appendices

	3 Roger Gough, Cabinet Member for Education and Health Reform & Patrick Leeson, Corporate Director for Education and Young People's Services
	RogerGoughbioforkentgov130715.docx
	Select Committee Evidence Session 1 Questions - FINAL 20.01.16


